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As we delivered 2008's record results, we continued to diversifty
our business, strengthening our ability to deliver long-term value
to customers and investors in a cyclical marketplace.



We continued to invest to deepen AAR capabilities within
our core businesses and our customer base.

BUILDING ™

DEPTH
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$606,490
$543,674

$300,871
$211,516

$389,428
$264,083

$88,13¢
$41,896




BUILDING
STRENGTH

—

We worked to further strengthen AAR in fiscal 2008 — we took
action to bolster our financial position, continue to engage our
people and improve our operations throughout the year.



70 OUR STOCKHOLDERS, CUSTOMERS AND EMPLOYEES:

FISCAL 2008 WAS AN OUTSTANDING YEAR
FOR THE COMPANY. WE ACHIEVED RECORD
SALES AND EARNINGS, WITH ALL FOUR

OF OUR BUSINESS SEGMENTS REPORTING

DOUBLE-DIGIT GROWTH.

Financial Highlights Best A\lailcble CODV

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED MAY 31 IN THOUSANDS. EXCEPT PER SHARE DATA
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

OPERATING PERFORMANGE

Net Sales $1,.384,919 $1,061,169 $885,518 $740,427 $632,223

Income From

Continuing Operations 75,745 59,447 35,823 19,498 5,430

Diluted Earnings Per Share

From Continuing Operations $1.77 $1.42 $0.96 $0.57 $017

FINANCIAL POSITION

Working Capital $564,932 $389,215 $436,666 $314,517 $300,943

Total Assets 1,362,010 1,067,633 978,819 732,230 709,292

Total Debt 518,946 327,856 320,865 230,904 252,058




Annual Sales 2004-2008 {in thousands)
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51,284,918

$1 061169

5885 518

£740427

$632 223
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Best Available Copy

We broadened our capabilities through twe acquisitions,
continued to enhance our product mix tc better meet customer
needs and capture market share, strengthened our liquidity
and bolstered our senior leadership team.

Highlights of our financial resufts from the fiscal year:

* Record sales of $1,385 miffion, an increase of 31 percent
» Netincome of $75.1 million, an increase of 28 percent

* QOperating margin improved to 9.7 percent of sales

+ Commercial sales increased 28 percent

« Defense sales increased 37 percent

* International sales increased 13 percent

This record performance is the result of our intense focus on
innovation and execution, expanding and diversifying our
product lines and customer base both in North America and
abroad, and continuing to increase our value proposition for
commercial and defense customers as they seek ways lo
operate more efficientty and cost-effectively.

Since January 2008, there has been significant pressure on
our share price, driven by the broad-based decline in capital
markets and further influenced Dy concerns over the price of

crude oil, the state of the U.S. economy and the health of the
commercial airfine industry. While a softening in the commercial
airline industry, on the surface, does not bode well for our
Company, many of the services that we provide help the
airlines lower their operating expenses, thus making out value -
proposition increasingly attractive. Additionally, while the

U.S. airlines reduce their fleets 10 compensate for the high
cost of fuel and a weakening U.S. economy, the worldwide
fleet continues o grow, creéting opporiunities for AAR.

I February, the Company strengthened its liguidity position
with the issuance of $250 million of convertible notes consisting
of $137.5 million of 1.625% notes due 2014 and $112.5 millicn of
2.25% notes due 2016. A portion of these proceeds was used
1o fund the acquisitions as well as the retirement of $64 miliion
of debt.

Segment Highlights

Sales in our Aviation Supply Chain segment grew by approxi-
mately 12 percent in fiscal 2008, reflecting our industry-leading
position providing parts and related services and high-value
supply chain program support. Intermational sales in this segment
increased by 15 percent.

David P. Storch
Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer

Timothy J. Romenesko
President and
Chief Qperating Officer




We achieved 42 percent year-over-year sales growth in our
Maintenance, Repair and Overhau! (MRQ) segment, driven by
solid performance at our Indianapolis heavy maintenance facility
and record sales at our Landing Gear business. Our acquisition
of Avborne Heavy Maintenance in March 2008 added a 226,000-
square-foot hangar at the Miami International Airport, expanded
our customer base and broadened our capabilities to inciude
heavy maintenance for Airbus and wide-body aircraft.

AAR's Structures and Systems segment posted a 47 percent
sales increase, fueled by strength in cur Mebility Systermns busi-
ness, the acquisition of Summa Technclogy and a full year of
revenue from our previous acquisition of Brown International.
Summa Technology brings precision machining and fabrication
of highly engineered structural components for business jets,
military fighter aircraft and a variety of industrial applications.

In February 2008, we announced a significant increase to our
composites manufacturing capacity with the expansion into
the former McClellan Air Force Base composite facility in
Sacramento, California.

During fiscal 2008, sales in our Aircraft Sales and Leasing
segment increased $46 million. We achieved a 15.5 percent
return on our portfolio, which currently consists of 37 aircraft —
29 of which are owned through joint ventures and eight of
which are wholly owned. Ali of these aircraft are currently on
lease, with 24 of the planes leased to carriers outside of North

America. We added 22 aircraft during the first half of the fiscal
year and did not acquire any aircraft during the second half.

Aircraft retirements and capacity reductions by U.S. airlines
create both challenges and opportunities for AAR, Near term,
we expect aircraft to change hands, creating apportunities for
AAR to remarket aircraft outside the U.S. and acquire planes
for disassembly to support customers through our Supply
Chain businesses.

Bullding the AAR Team

We are very impressed with the dedicaticn of our workforce
and their relentless commitment to customer satisfaction,
continuous improvement and airworthiness. For example,
AAR's worldwide team of Aviation Maintenance Technicians
{AMTs) earned the FAA's Diamond Award of Excellence for the
fourth consecutive year, with 100 percent of our 1,731 eligible
technicians recognized for meeting or exceeding FAA training
requirements. Congratulations to our AMTSs for again earning
this prestigious award.

We strengthened our senior management team with the
appointment of several outstanding individuals to key positions.
Rick Poulton has added a new dimension o our [eadership team
and has done an excellent job during his first yzar as CFO,
allowing Tim to transition smoothly into his new teadership role
as President and Chief Operating Officer.

The following graph compares the five-year cumulative total stockholder return (including reinvestment of dividends) of the Company,

the S&P 500 Index and the S&P 600 Aerospace/Defense Index.

................................ ‘Agsumes $100 invested on May 31,

800 . 2003. and reinvestment ot divigends
.?ix‘)...........‘......................................................_.,t.’ ....................... in the Compary's common stack,
............................................................................................. the S&P 500 Index and the 58P 600
600 .- Acrospace/Delense Index
500 - The S&P Index is comprised of
400 ...................................... . domestic industry leaders in four major
.............................. sectors: Ingusirials, Financiats. Wkiities
300 3 and Transporiation, and serves as a
200 ........ e O R L TP RN broad indicator of the performarnce
........ R o T T I of the LS. equity markel. The S&P
100 600 Aerospace/Defense index is
.............................................................................................. comprised of small cap companies
May 03 May 04 May 05 May 06 May 07 Mayos  engagedin aeraspace/delense
business activilies including. AAR
CORP., Applied Signal Technology.
Base Period Inc..-CefaQyne Inc., Cubic (..‘.oro‘.
INDEX May 03 May 04 May 05 May 06 May 07 May 08 Curtiss-Wright Corp., Esterline
Technologies Cop., GenCorp Inc..
. AARCORP. $100.00 $212.89 $356.44 $535.11 $722.22 $428.44 Moog Inc. Cl A, Orbital Sciences
Corp., Teletyne Technologies Inc.
HE S&P 500 Index 100.00 118.33 128.08 139.14 170.85 159.41 and Triumph Group. Inc.
S&P 600 Aetospace/Defense  100.00 141.84 173.57 203.19 263.32 263.19

Source: Standard & Poor's




Sales by Segment
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Al the beginning of fiscal 2008 Terry Stinson joined AAR to
lead the Structures and Systems segment. Terry has brought
a deep understanding ¢f the agrospace industry to the Company
and has provided excellent leadership for this group of busi-
nesses. Additionally, Donald J. Wetekam joined AAR and was
appointed Group Vice President, MRO, Don retired from the
U.S. Air Force in July 2007 as a Lieutenant General and in his
last assignment served as Deputy Chief of Staff for Installa-
tions and Logistics. Don s a recognized leader in the area of
process improvement technigues and Lean methodologies.

Adter 20 years of exemplary service at AAR, Howard A, Pulsifer
retired as General Counsel in June of 2008. Howard provided
sound guidance as chief legal counsel and will continue 1o serve
as Secretary through the remainder of fiscal 2009. Assuming the
position of General Counsel was Robert J. Regan, who was a
partner at Schiff Hardin LLP, a leading Chicage-based law firm
that has served as outside legal counsel to AAR for more than
40 years.

In October 2007, Norman R. Bobins joined our Board of Directors.
Norm is widely recognized as one of Chicago's top bankers and
civic leaders, and makes an cutstanding addition to an already
strong board.

We have a focused and energized leadership team in place that
is committed to growing the business while providing the best
workplace possible for cur employees — a place where our
people can make a difference and have the opportunity to be
the best they can be.

Moving Forward

Today, AAR is well positioned to capitalize on changing
industry dynamics. As the new millennium uniolded, many
major U.S. airlines sought to lower their cost structures by
outsourcing a larger percentage of their airirame maintenance
activities, and we responded by adding substantial new
capeacity to service this market. Additicnally, we opened a
new low-cost manufacturing center in North Carolina and
added several new sites to support defense logistics programs.
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Sales by Region

o 45% North Amenca Commercial
Hl 37% North Amenca  Defense
Wy, 4% Europe

6% Asia Paoilic
3% Other

We also expanded our integration and engineering services
and high-end manufacturing capabilities, further diversifying
our product mix. Strengthening our portfolio and solid execution
have.contributed to an almost deubling in sales over the past
three years.

As we look at the global marketplace, we see growth opportuni-
ties as well as risks due 1o regional conilicts, crude cil volatility
and tightening credit markets. The Company's pricrities remain
squarely on identifying new niches and apportunities, adding
more engineering content to our proeducts and services, capturing
market share and strengthening our balance sheet.

In Appreclation

We are commitied to creating shareholder value and are
grateful to our stockholders for their continued support and
investment in our future. We would like to thank cur customers
for their confidence and for the opportunity to support them.
We would also like to acknowledge our Board of Directors for
their active participation in our strategic development and for
their commitment to the best in corporate governance. Ang, we
wish 10 express our appreciation for the outstanding contributions
of our 6,100 employees who embody the AAR spirit.

Our goal is to make AAR “the place o be" for our customers,
employees and stockholders.

Sincerely,

1P Sl

David P. Storch
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Jllmecky G Kirmsnrdo

Timothy J. Romenesko
President and Chief Operating Officer

August 15, 2008




In today’'s market environment, a diversified business is a

solid business. We have worked steadily to build balance,
depth and strength across AAR.
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Expanding capabilities with Summa
and adding capacity in Composites.

The acquisition of Summa Technology
and the lease of a 90,000-square-foot
Composites manufacturing facility in
Sacramento, California, represent two
big steps forward in our ongoing efforts
to build a stronger, more diversified
AAR — with a broad array of high-value
capabilities in growth markets.

The acquisition of Summa Technology adds a strong suite
of engineering and manufacturing capabilities to AAR's
business. As an established source of precision-machined
components and assemblies for customers in the government,
commercial aviation and industrial sectors — from the Space
Shuttle, Tomahawk Cruise Missiles and air defense systems
to commercial and military aircraft, even lawn tractors —
AAR Summa Technology represents an important new growth
platform for the Company.

In our Composites business, the new Sacramento facility
more than quadrupled our capacity virtually overnight.

With its superior strength-tc-weight properties, composite
technology is critical to the future in both commercial and
military aviation markets. AAR is now in a stronger position
to compete for significant involvernent in a number of major
commercial and defense programs.

By growing our capabilities in high-technology, high-value manufacturing, we're increasing

the value we offer our customers and improving our ability to enter new markets.




AAR Summa Technology adds more
than 400,000 square feet of high-end
manufacturing capacity, along with
design and engineering capabilities, to
AAR's Structures and Systems segment.
With involvernent in an increasing
number of long-term commercial and
government programs, wa expect the
new business to be a strong contributor
to future growth.

AN LUl VU ATRINUAL RLEFYVNRT  Tu

Composite content is on the rise in
new aviation technology, and with it,
demand {rom major OEMs. Autoclaves,
large cylindrical chambers for fabricating
composite componants, are a kay
measure of capacity. In fiscal 2008,
AAR added four autoclaves to the cne
it previously operated.




Helicopters: tapping AAR strengths to grow
in a high-potential niche.

As a provider of cargo systems

and containers, parts and logistics
services, component repair and,
most recently, precision-machined
and composite parts for major
helicopter programs, AAR is in a
strong position to expand. Multiple
AAR businesses are working together
to pursue growth opportunities

in the rotorcraft market.

For more than 20 years, AAR has provided engineering,
manufacturing, parts and repair, and specialized containers
for the Helicopter Internal Cargo Handling System (HICHS)
on the Boeing CH-47 Chinook.

Today, AAR has a growing presence in a vaviety of rotorcrait
programs. AAR's Aviation Supply Chain sectcr supplies
Auxiliary Power Unit parts for the Sikorsky H-60 Blackhawk.
AAR's Composites business provides irderior shell components
for the Sikorsky 5-92 and flare dispensers for the Boeing
MH-47. We also provide a range of local support services
for Bell Helicopter from eight AAR facilities, including supply
chain and logistics, forecasting and kitting.

We are actively pursuing opportunities to leverage our
relationships and form new ones to grow this business —
from engineering and manufacturing to supply chain and
MRC, our strong capabilities and a close-to-the-customer
operating philosophy make AAR an ideal fit.

We've heightened our focus on the rotorcraft area. There are some excellent opportunities

to leverage our core strengths and form new partnerships to grow the business.
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Systems integration: an increasingly
sophisticated, high-value offering.

From sm a“ SCB'G to | arge from AAR's Structures and Systems segment is st=2adily deepening
its capabilities and extending its product lines to increase the
theater of operatlons to homeland value it offers customers. In addition to its leadership in rapid

deployment equipment, AAR's design and systems integration

security, from training and R&D to

expertise positions the Company to be a strong competitor

humanitarian relief. AAR has added in an increasingly broad range of applications.
advanced design, engineering and In command and control (C2), AAR transii case systems

_ _ o provide value for secure and nonsecure voice communications.
systems integration capabilities in larger-scale applications, our mobile platforms and fixed

facilities provide highly tailored, scafable and network-centric

to its manufacturing and support

solutions for a variety of C2 requirements.
leadership to meet robust and
Increasingly complex product lines demand a wide range
still-growing market demand. of aftermarket services. AAR technicians provide system
upgrades, maintenance services and on-site technical
support for C2 systems, tracked and wheeled vehicles, and
expeditionary systems across Southwest Asia, the Middle
East and other customer locations worldwide.

Qur involvement now includes front-end systems engineering, development and integration —

and a wider range of life-cycle support services, both for our own and other companies’ products.
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AAR develops and supports
integrated systems for battiefield
managernent that merge data from
muiltiple sources and sensors into one
unified “track” of warfighter-friendly,
actionable information. This “track fusion”
technology improves situational awareness
and speeds decision-making in today's
data-rich tactical environment. The result
is improved operational eftectiveness,
better use of tactical assets and sater
troops on the ground.




Gaining altitude: our enterprise-wide focus
on operational excellence.

For the last several years, AAR has
been systematically putting in place
tools to reduce cycle time, improve
quality and workplace safety, and
eliminate waste. In fiscal 2008,

our efforts continued to show in our
results — and there is still significant
room for improvement.

Lean. Six Sigma. TOC. These are among the 1ools AAR is
utilizing to pursue and achieve operational excellence across
the enterprise.

But they are just tools. More important, programs are
beceming part of a cultural change. Increasingly, our people
are taking a new approach to their day-to-day work. They're
learning to constantly look for anything that doesn't add value,
and they have a greater voice in the centinuous improvement
process. These programs are mebilizing the AAR workforce,
creating greater individual accountability and an increased
sense of connection to the goals of the Cempany,

Ongoing improvements in the areas of waste reduction,
cycle time and quality contributed to our record fiscal 2008
performance, and we expect the impact to increase as our
eiforts continue to gain momenium.

Across AAR, we are focusing on efficiency and on what adds value in our work.

Even more important, we're defining value in our customers’ terms.
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Continuous process improvement
is key in operational excelience initiative
Across AAR, people are working in
teams, using process mapping and othg
common-sense technigues to identify
and eliminate any steps that do not
add value. The initiatives aim 1o creale
a culture of continuous improvement,
embeodied by empowered, customer-
value-focused employees. The benefits]
— cost and cycle time reduction, wastd
eliminatian, quality improvements —
are increasingly evident as we impleme
initiatives across cur businesses.




AAR LEADERSHIP

Officers, Directors and Committees

An accomplished and experienced leadership team dedicated

to integrity, fiscal responsibility, operational excellence,

customer satisfaction and shareholder value.

David P. Storch
Chairrnan and Chief Execidive Officer

Timothy J. Romenesko
Presxdent and Chig! Operating Officer

Michael K. Carr
Vice Presiclent. Tax

Peter K. Chapman
Vice President and Chiel Commercial Officer

James J. Clark
Group Vice Presidertt. Avation Supply Cham

Michael “Mickey” Cohen
Vice President. Operations and Engineering

John P. Johnson
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Kevin M. Larson
Vice President, Chief Informabion Oifcer
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Vice President, Chief Financial Officer
and Treasurer

David E. Prusiecki
vice Preswient. Delense Programs

Robert J. Regan
Vice Preswdent and General Caunsel

Michael J. Sharp
Vice President. Controfler
and Chief Accounting Ofhcer

Timothy O. Skelly
Vice President. Human Resources

Terry D. Stinson
Group Vice President. Structures and Systems

David P. Storch
Chairrnan and Chiet Executive Officer.
AAR CORP

Norman R, Bobins
Chairman, The PivateBank — Clucago

Chairrnan Ementus. LaSalle Bank Corporation

Michael R, Boyce

Chatrenan and Chied Executive Olficer
PQ Coiporation

Chawman and Chiet Executive Qfficer
Peak investments

James G, Brocksmith, Jr.
Independent Business Consultant

Retired Deputy Charman
and Chief Operating Qfficer, KPMG LLP

Gerald F. Fitzgerald, Jr.
Chairman and President,
Cornersione Bancwip. Inc.
Chairman and Pre~ident,
LaSalte Bancorm. Inc

General Ronald R. Fogleman,
USAF (Ret.)

Presiclent and Chief Operating Officer.
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Chanrnan, Durango Group. LLC

James E. Goodwin

Intenim President and CEO.
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independent Busmess Consuflant

Retrad Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer. UAL. inc

Patrick J. Kelly
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Marc J. Walfish
Founder, Merit Capital Partners

Ronald B. Woodard
Charman, MagnaDrve, Inc
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Commercial Airplane Group
Honorary
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PART 1

ITEM 1. BUSINESS
(Dollars in thousands)

General

bad

AAR CORP and its subsidiaries are referred to herein collectively as “AAR,” “Company,” ‘“‘we,
us,” and “our” unless the context indicates otherwise. AAR was founded in 1951, organized in 1955 and
reincorporated in Delaware in 1966. We are a diversified provider of products and services to the
worldwide aviation and defense industries. We conduct our business activities primarily through six
principal operating subsidiaries: AAR Parts Trading, Inc., AAR Aircraft & Engine Sales & Leasing, Inc.,
AAR Services, Inc., AAR Aircraft Services, Inc., AAR Manufacturing, Inc., and AAR International, Inc.
Our international business activities are conducted primarily through AAR International, Inc.

114

We report our activities in four business segments: (i) Aviation Supply Chain, comprised primarily of
business activities conducted through AAR Parts ‘Trading, Inc., AAR Services, Inc., AAR Allen
Services, Inc., (a wholly-owned subsidiary of AAR Parts Trading, Inc. and AAR Services, Inc.), and AAR
International, Inc. (ii) Maintenance, Repair and Overhaul, comprised primarily of business activities
conducted through AAR Services, Inc., AAR Allen Services, Inc. and AAR Aircraft Services, Inc.
(iii} Structures and Systems, comprised primarily of business activities conducted through AAR
Manufacturing, Inc., and (iv) Aircraft Sales and Leasing, comprised of business activities primarily
conducted through AAR Aircraft & Engine Sales & Leasing, Inc.

Aviation Supply Chain

Activities in our Aviation Supply Chain segment include the purchase and sale of a wide variety of
new, overhauled and repaired engine and airframe parts and components for our airline and defense
customers. We also repair and overhaul a wide variety of avionics, electrical, electronic, fuel, hydraulic and
pneumatic components and instruments and a broad range of internal airframe components for the same
customer categories. We provide customized inventory supply and management programs and
performance-based logistics programs for engine and airframe parts and components in support of airline
and defense customer’s maintenance activities. The types of services provided under these programs
include program and warehouse management, parts replenishment and parts and component repair and
overhaul. We are an authorized distributor for more than 125 leading aviation product manufacturers. In
addition, we sell and lease commercial jet engines. We acquire aviation parts and components for the
Aviation Supply Chain segment from domestic and foreign airlines, original equipment manufacturers,
independent aviation service companies and aircraft leasing companies. From time-to-time, we also
purchase aircraft and engines for disassembly to individual parts and components. These assets may be
leased to airlines on a short-term basis prior to disassembly. In the Aviation Supply Chain segment, the
majority of our sales are made pursuant to standard commercial purchase orders. In certain inventory
supply and management programs and performance-based logistics programs, we supply products and
services under agreements reflecting negotiated terms and conditions.

Maintenance, Repair and Overhaul

Activities in our Maintenance, Repair and Overhaul segment include airframe maintenance services
and the repair and overhaul of most types of landing gear for our airline and defense customers. We have a
long-term lease to occupy a portion of an airframe maintenance facility in Indianapolis, Indiana (the
“Indianapolis Maintenance Center” or “IMC”), which is owned by the Indianapolis Airport Authority
(“IAA”). We believe the IMC is one of the most efficient and state-of-the-art airframe maintenance
facilities in the United States. The IMC is comprised of 12 airframe maintenance bays, backshop space to
support airframe maintenance activities, warchouse and office space. Qur lease with the IAA allows us to
occupy up to ten of the maintenance bays and certain office space and expires in December 2014, with a



ten-year renewal option. The lease agreement contains early termination rights for AAR and the 1AA,
which may be exercised in specified circumstances. We also operate an aircraft maintenance facility located
in Oklahoma City, Oklahoma providing airframe maintenance, modification, special equipment
installation, painting services and aircraft terminal services for various models of commercial, defense,
regional, business and general aviation aircraft. On March 5, 2008, we acquired Avborne Heavy
Maintenance, Inc. (“Avborne”) and a related entity. Avborne is an independent provider of aircraft heavy
maintenance checks, modifications, installations and painting services to commercial airlines, international
cargo carriers and major aircraft leasing companies. Avborne performs heavy maintenance on Boeing and
Airbus aircraft at a 226,000 square foot leased facility, located at Miami International Airport. The
purchase price was approximately $40,000 and included a cash payment of $15,000 and the assumption of a
$25,000 industrial revenue bond. On January 12, 2007, we acquired substantially all the assets of Reebaire
Aircraft, Inc. (“Reebaire”), a regional airframe maintenance and repair overhaul facility located in Hot
Springs, Arkansas. This acquisition increased our regional MRO capacity in North America. In addition to
our airframe maintenance facilitics we operate a landing gear repair center in Miami, Florida and an
aircraft storage facility in Roswell, New Mexico. In this segment, we purchase replacement parts from
original equipment manufacturers and suppliers that are used in our maintenance, repair and overhaul
operations. We have ongoing arrangements with original equipment manufacturers (OEMs) that provide
us access to parts, repair manuals and service bulletins in support of parts manufactured by the OEM.
Although the terms of each arrangement vary, they typically are made on standard OEM terms as to
duration, price and delivery. When possible, we obtain replacement parts used in repair and overhaul
activities from operating units in our Aviation Supply Chain segment.

Structures and Systems

Activities in our Structures and Systems segment include the design, manufacture and repair of pallets
and a wide variety of containers and shelters in support of military and humanitarian tactical deployment
activities, We design, manufacture and install in-plane cargo loading and handling systems for commercial
and military aircraft and helicopters. We also design and manufacture advanced composite materials for
commercial, business and military aircraft as well as advanced composite structures for the transportation
industry. On December 3, 2007, we acquired Summa Technology, Inc. (“Summa”), a leading provider of
high-end sub-systems and precision machining, fabrication, welding and engineering services. The purchase
price was approximately $71,000 and was paid in cash. On April 2, 2007, we acquired Brown International
Corporation (“Brown”), a privately held defense contractor that provides engineering, design,
manufacturing and systems integration services. During the fiscal year ended May 31, 2007 (“fiscal 2007”),
we decided to exit our non-core industrial turbine business located in Frankfort, New York, and treat it as a
discontinued operation. In this segment, sales are made to customers pursuant to standard commercial
purchase orders and contracts. We purchase the raw materials for this business, including aluminum sheets,
extrusions and castings and other necessary supplies, from a number of vendors.

Aircraft Sales and Leasing

Activities in our Aircraft Sales and Leasing segment include the sale or lease of used commercial
aircraft. Each sale or lease is negotiated as a separate agreement which includes term, price,
representations, warranties and lease return provisions. Leases have fixed terms; early termination by
either party is not permitted except in the event of a breach. In this segment, we purchase aircraft from
airlines and aircraft leasing companies for our own account or in partnership with strategic or financial
partners typically under joint venture agreements. During the first half of the fiscal year ended May 31,
2008 (“fiscal 2008"), we purchased 20 aircraft with joint venture partners. We have not purchased any
aircraft since November 2007 in this segment. At May 31, 2008, the total number of aircraft held in these
joint ventures was 29. We also own eight aircraft for our own account.




The following table summarizes our aircraft portfolio by aircraft type and by ownership status as of
May 31, 2008:
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At May 31, 2008, all aircraft wholly-owned or through joint venture are on lease, with 24 of the aircraft
on lease outside of North America. During the fiscal year ended May 31, 2009 (“fiscal 2009”), four
737-300’s in the joint venture portfolio will be up for lease renewal and one 737-300 in the wholly-owned
portfolio will be up for lease renewal. The oldest aircraft in the portfolio of 37 aircraft is 21 years old and
the newest aircraft is nine years old. The average age of our fleet is 16 years. Our total investment in the
joint venture and wholly-owned aircraft portfolio is approximately $121,500. Within Aircraft Sales and
Leasing segment, we also provide advisory services which consist of assistance in remarketing aircraft,
records management and storage maintenance.

Raw Materials

We historically have been able to obtain raw materials and other items for our inventories for each of
our segments at competitive prices, terms and conditions from numerous sources, and we expect to be able
to continue to do so.

Terms of Sale

In the Aviation Supply Chain, Maintenance, Repair and Overhaul, and Structures and Systems
segments, we generally sell our products under standard 30-day terms. On occasion, certain customers
(principally foreign customers) will negotiate extended payment terms (60-90 days). Except for customary
warranty provisions, customers do not have the right to return products nor do they have the right to
extended financing. In the Aircraft Sales and Leasing segment, we sell our products on a cash due at
delivery basis, standard 30-day terms or on an extended term basis and aircraft purchasers do not have the
right to return the aircraft. Our contracts with the U.S. Department of Defense and its contractors are
typically firm agreements to provide products and services at a fixed price and have a term of one year or
less, frequently subject to extension for one or more additional periods of one year at the option of the
U.S. Department of Defense.

Customers

For each of our reportable segments, we market and sell products and services primarily through our
own employees. In certain markets, we rely on foreign sales representatives to assist in the sale of our
products and services. The principal customers for our products and services in the Aviation Supply Chain
and Maintenance, Repair and Overhaul segments are domestic and foreign commercial airlines, regional
and commuter airlines, business and general aviation operators, original equipment manufacturers, aircraft
leasing companies, domestic and foreign military organizations and independent aviation support




companies. In the Structures and Systems segment, our principal customers include domestic and foreign
defense organizations, domestic and foreign passenger and freight airlines, original equipment
manufacturers, large system providers and other industrial entities. The principal customers in the Aircraft
Sales and Leasing segment include domestic and foreign commercial airlines and aircraft finance and
leasing companies. Sales of aviation products and services to our airline customers are generally affected
by such factors as the number, type and average age of aircraft in service, the levels of aircraft utilization
(e.g., frequency of schedules), the number of airline operators and the level of sales of new and used
aircraft. Sales to the 1J.S. Department of Defense are subject to a number of factors, including the level of
troop deployment worldwide, competitive bidding, government funding and requirements generated by
world events.

Licenses

We have 12 Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) licensed repair stations in the United States and
Europe. Of the 12 licensed FAA repair stations, seven are also European Aviation Safety Agency (EASA)
licensed repair stations. Such licenses, which are ongoing in duration, are required in order for us to
perform authorized maintenance, repair and overhaul services for our customers and are subject to
revocation by the government for non-compliance with applicable regulations. Of the 12 FAA licensed
repair stations, four are in the Aviation Supply Chain segment, six are in the Maintenance, Repair and
Overhaul segment, and two are in the Structures and Systems segment. Of the seven EASA licensed repair
stations, two are in the Aviation Supply Chain segment, four are in the Maintenance, Repair and Overhaul
segment and one is in the Structures and Systems segment. We believe that we possess all licenses and
certifications that are material to the conduct of our business.

Competition

Competition in our markets is based on quality, ability to provide a broad range of products and
services, speed of delivery and price. Competitors in both the Aviation Supply Chain and the Maintenance,
Repair and Overhaul segments include original equipment manufacturers, the service divisions of large
commercial airlines and other independent suppliers of parts and repair and overhaul services. Our
engineering, manufacturing, machining and integration activities in our Structures and Systems segment
compete with a number of divisions of large corporations and other large and small companies. In our
Aircraft Sales and Leasing segment, we face competition from financial institutions, syndicators, hedge
funds, commercial and specialized leasing companies and other entities that provide financing. Although
certain of our competitors have substantially greater financial and other resources than we do, in each of
our four reportable segments we believe that we have maintained a satisfactory competitive position
through our responsiveness to customer needs, our attention to quality and our unique combination of
market expertise and technical and financial capabilities.

Backlog

At May 31, 2008, backlog believed to be firm was approximately $466,700 compared to $319,700 at
May 31, 2007, These amounts do not include expected sales from the A400M cargo system. Approximately
$412,400 of our May 31, 2008 backlog is expected to be filled within the next 12 months. The increase in
our backlog principally reflects an increase in backlog in our Aviation Supply Chain segment and in our
Structures and Systems segment mainly due to the impact of the acquisition of Summa.

Employees

At May 31, 2008, we employed approximately 5,400 persons worldwide. We also retain approximately
750 contract workers, the majority of which are located at our airframe maintenance facilities.




Sales to Defense Customers

Sales to global defense customers were $518,796 (37.5% of total sales) in fiscal 2008. Sales to the U.S.
Department of Defense and its contractors were $438,501 (31.7% of total sales), $325,280 (30.7% of total
sales) and $293,778 (33.2% of total sales) in fiscal years 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively. Because such
sales are subject to competitive bidding and U.S. government funding, no assurance can be given that such
sales will continue at levels previously experienced. The majority of our U.S. government contracts are for
products and services used for ongoing military logistic support activities and are subject to changes in
defense spending. Cur U.S. government contracts are subject to termination at the election of the U.S.
government; in the event of such a termination we would be entitled to recover from the U.S. government
all allowable costs incurred by us through the date of termination.

Available Information

For additional information concerning our business segments, see Item 7, “Management’s Discussion
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations™ and “Business Segment Information” in
Note 15 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements under Item 8, “Financial Statements and
Supplementary Data”, below.

Our internet address is www.aarcorp.com. We make available free of charge through our web site our
annual report on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K and all
amendments to those reports filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13(a} or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 as soon as reasonably practicable after we clectronically file such material with, or
furnish such material to the Securities and Exchange Commission, Information contained on our web site
is not a part of this report,



ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

The following is a description of some of the principal risks inherent in our business. The risks and
uncertainties described below are not the only ones facing us. Additional risks and uncertainties not
presently known to us, or that we currently deem immaterial, could adversely impact our results of
operations or financial condition in the future.

We are affected by factors that adversely affect the aviation industry.

As a provider of products and services to the aviation industry, we are greatly affected by overall
economic conditions of that industry. The aviation industry is historically cyclical and has been negatively
affected in recent years by the terrorist attacks of September 11, 2001, the subsequent decline in air travel,
historically high oil prices, the war on terrorism and the outbreak of Severe Acute Respiratory Syndrome,
or SARS. As a result of these and other events, certain customers filed for bankruptcy protection over the
past several years, and others may be forced to do so in the future.

More recently, since the early part of calendar year 2008, most U.S. air carriers have announced a new
wave of cost reduction initiatives, including staffing reductions, route consolidations and capacity
reductions. We believe the announced capacity reductions impact 10-15% of the U.S. fleet and principally
impact older-generation narrow-body and certain regional aircraft. The announced fleet reductions are in
response to record high oil prices and softening economic conditions in the U.S., and are expected to be
mostly implemented beginning in the fall of 2008, In addition, certain air carriers have ceased operations.
A reduction in the operating fleet of passenger aircraft both in the U.S. and abroad will result in reduced
demand for parts support and maintenance activities for the type of aircraft affected.

There has also been tightening in the credit markets which may affect our customers’ ability to raise
debt or equity capital. This may reduce the amount of liquidity available to our customers which may limit
their ability to buy parts, services and aircraft. There is also uncertainty over the direction of the U.S.
economy as a result of slower growth rates, higher unemployment and the weak housing market.

Qur business, financial condition, and results of operations and our growth rates may be adversely
affected by these and other events that impact the aviation industry, particularly the following:

* continued historically high oil prices;
* future terrorist attacks and the ongoing war on terrorism;
* deterioration in the financial condition of our existing and potential customers;

* reductions in the need for, or the deferral of, aircraft maintenance and repair services and spare
parts support,

* retirement of older generation aircraft, resulting in lower prices for spare parts and services for
those aircraft;

* reductions in demand for used aircraft and engines; and

+ future outbreaks of infectious diseases.

QOur customers may not be able to meet their financial obligations to us or we may experience less business as
a result of the current airline environment, which would adversely affect our financial condition and results of
operations.

Mesa Airlines and subsidiaries (“Mesa”) is a customer of the Company and in May 2008, warned it
may have to file for bankruptcy protection if it could not resolve a contract dispute with one of its
customers. During fiscal 2008, our consolidated sales to Mesa were $73,000, of which 356,000 was in the
Aviation Supply Chain segment and $17,000 in the Maintenance, Repair and Overhaul segment. At




May 31, 2008, we have inventory of $4,000 and other long-term assets recorded in equipment on long-term
lease of $51,000 supporting the Mesa supply chain programs and also have trade receivables and other
assets associated with Mesa of approximately $13,000.

In addition to Mesa, a number of our existing and prospective wortdwide airline customers continue
to suffer from the problems affecting the aviation industry, and some have filed for bankruptcy protection.
As a result, we may sell fewer parts and services to these customers and certain of these customers
continue to pose credit risks to us. Our inability to collect receivables from one or more important
customers, including Mesa, would adversely affect our results of operations and financial condition.

The market value for our aviation products fluctuates.

We have used a number of assumptions when determining the recoverability of inventories and
aircraft and engines which are on lease or available for lease. These assumptions include historical sales
trends, current and expected usage trends, replacement values, current and expected lease rates, residual
values, future demand, and future cash flows. Principally as a result of the events of September 11, 2001
and its impact on the global airline industry’s financial condition, fleet size and aircraft utilization, we
recorded a significant charge for impaired inventories and engines during the second quarter of fiscal 2002
utilizing those assumptions. During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2003 and the first quarter of fiscal 2007, we
recorded additional charges as a result of a further decline in market value for certain of these inventories,
aircraft and engines. Further reductions in demand for our inventories or declining market values, as well
as differences between actual results and the assumptions utilized by us when determining the
recoverability of our inventories, aircraft and engines, could result in additional impairment charges in
future periods. We can give no assurance that future impairment charges for our inventories, aircraft and
engines will not occur.

Acquisitions expose us to risks, including the risk that we may be unable to effectively integrate acquired
businesses.

During fiscal 2008 and 2007, we completed four acquisitions. Further, we explore and have discussions
with third parties regarding additional acquisitions on a regular basis. Acquisitions involve risks, including
difficulties in integrating the operations and personnel of the acquired business, the effects of amortization
of any acquired intangible assets and the potential impairment of goodwill on our financial results, and the
potential loss of key employees of the acquired business. For the acquisitions we made during fiscal 2008
and fiscal 2007, and for any additional businesses we may acquire in the future, we may not be able to
execute our operational, financial or integration plan of the acquired businesses, which could adversely
affect our results of operations and financial condition.

Our government contracts may not continue at present sales levels, which may have a material adverse effect
on our financial condition and results of operations.

Our sales to the U.S. Department of Defense and its contractors were approximately $438,501 (31.7%
of consolidated sales) in fiscal year 2008. The majority of our U.S. government contracts are for products
and services used for ongoing military logistic support activities and for products which support the U.S.
military’s deployment strategy. Our contracts with the U.S. Department of Defense and its contractors are
typically firm agreements to provide products and services at a fixed price and have a term of one year or
less, frequently subject to extension for one or more additional periods of one year at the option of the
U.S. Department of Defense. Sales to the U.S. Department of Defense are subject to a number of factors,
including the level of troop deployment worldwide, competitive bidding, U.S. government funding and
requirements generated by world events, and therefore may not continue at levels previously experienced,
which could have an adverse effect on our results of operations and financial condition.



We face risks of cost overruns and losses on fixed-price contracts.

We sell certain of our products and services under firm contracts providing for fixed prices for the
products and services, regardless of costs incurred by us. The cost of producing products or providing
services may be adversely affected by increases in the cost of labor, materials, fuel, overhead and other
unknown variants, including manufacturing and other operational inefficiencies and differences between
assumptions used by us to price a contract and actual results. Increased costs may result in cost overruns
and losses on such contracts which could adversely affect our results of operations and financial condition.

We may be unable to re-lease or sell aircraft and engines when their current leases expire.

We purchase and lease aircraft and engines to our customers on an operating lease basis. Our ability
to re-lease or sell these assets on acceptable terms is subject to a number of factors which drive industry
capacity, including new aircraft deliveries, availability of used aircraft and engines in the marketplace,
competition, financial condition of our customers, overall health of the airline indusiry and general
economic conditions. During fiscal 2009, five 737-300’s in our aircraft portfolio are up for lease renewal.
Our inability to re-lease these aircraft, or other aircraft and engines that are currently on lease, could
adversely affect our results of operations and financial condition.

Significant cost issues may develop associated with the A400M Cargo system.

In June 2005, we announced that our Cargo Systems business in our Structures and Systems segment
was selected to provide cargo handling systems for the new A400M Military Transport Aircraft (A400M).
We are a subcontractor to Pfalz Flugzeugwerke GmbH (PFW) of Speyer, Germany on this Airbus
program. We have incurred, and are expected to continue to incur, significant development costs in
connection with this program. Qur portion of revenue to be generated from this program is expected to
exceed $300,000 through fiscal 2015, based on current sales projections for the A400M as provided to us by
Airbus. Based on program delays and information provided by Airbus, planned first shipments under this
program have slipped from the second half fiscal 2008 to late fiscal 2009. If the A400M experiences
significant additional delivery delays or order cancellations, or if we fail to develop the system according to
contract specifications, then we may not be able to recover our development costs, and our operating
results and financial condition could be adversely affected.

Success within our Maintenance, Repair and Overhaul segment is dependent upon continued outsourcing by
the airlines.

We currently conduct airframe maintenance, repair and overhaul activities at leased facilities in
Indianapolis, Indiana; Oklahoma City, Oklahoma; Miami, Florida; and Hot Springs, Arkansas. Revenues
at these facilities fluctuate based on the demand for maintenance which, in turn, is driven by the number of
aircraft operating and the extent of outsourcing of maintenance activities by airlines. If the number of
aircraft operating decline or outsourcing of maintenance activities decline, we may not be able to execute
our operational and financial plan at our MRO facilities, which could adversely affect our results of
operations and financial condition.

We operate in a highly competitive industry, and competitive pressures may adversely affect us.

The aviation industry and the markets for our products and services are highly competitive, and we
face competition from a number of sources, both domestic and international. Our competitors include
aircraft manufacturers, aircraft parts manufacturers, airline and aircraft service companies, other
companies providing maintenance, repair and overhaul services, and other aircraft spare parts distributors
and redistributors. Some of our competitors have substantially greater financial and other resources than
we have. These competitive pressures could adversely affect our results of operations and financial
condition.




We are dependent upon continued availability of financing to manage our business and to execute our
business strategy, and additional financing may not be available on terms acceptable to us.

Our ability to manage our business and to execute our business strategy is dependent, in part, on the
continuing availability of debt and equity capital. Access to the debt and equity capital markets may be
limited by various factors, including general economic conditions, the state of the aviation industry, our
financial performance and current credit ratings. Debt and equity capital may not continue to be available
to us on favorable terms, or at all. Our inability to obtain financing on favorable terms could adversely
affect our results of operations and financial condition.

Our existing debt includes restrictive and financial covenants.

Certain of our loan agreements require us to comply with various restrictive covenants and some
contain financial covenants that require us to comply with specified financial ratios and tests. Qur failure to
meet these covenants could result in default under these loan agreements and would result in a cross-
default under other loan agreements. In the event of a default and our inability to obtain a waiver of the
default, all amounts outstanding under loan agreements could be declared immediately due and payable.
Our failure to comply with these covenants could adversely affect our results of operations and financial
condition.

We are subject to significant government regulation and may need to incur significant expenses to comply with
new or more stringent governmental regulation.

The aviation industry is highly regulated by the FAA in the United States and the equivalent
regulatory agencies in other countries. Before we sell any of our products that are to be instalied in an
aircraft, such as engines, engine parts and components, and airframe and accessory parts and components,
they must meet certain standards of airworthiness established by the FAA or the equivalent regulatory
agencies in other countries. We also operate repair stations that are licensed by the FAA and the
equivalent regulatory agencies in other countries. Specific regulations vary from country to country,
although regulatory requirements in other countries are generally satisfied by compliance with FAA
requirements. New and more stringent governmental regulations may be adopted in the future that, if
enacted, may have an adverse impact on us. If material licenses, authorizations or approvals were revoked
or suspended by the FAA and in some cases the equivalent regulatory agencies in other countries, our
results of operations and financial condition may be adversely affected.

The FAA, airlines and others in the industry have heightened their sensitivity and scrutiny with respect
to compliance with approved maintenance procedures. Additionally, aircraft maintenance and the FAA’s
oversight of maintenance activities has become a prevalent topic in the media. Our results of operations
could be adversely affected as a result of negative publicity associated with recent media activity and
increased FAA scrutiny of air carrier and MRO maintenance activities, even if our procedures continue to
meet applicable regulatory and original equipment manufacturer’s requirements.

Our industry is susceptible to product liability claims, and claims not adequately covered by insurance may
adversely affect our financial condition.

Our business exposes us to possible claims for property damage and personal injury or death which
may result if an engine, engine part or component, airframe part or accessory or any other aviation product
which we have sold, manufactured or repaired fails, or if an aircraft in which our products are installed
crashes and the cause cannot be determined. We carry substantial liability insurance in amounts that we
believe are adequate for our risk exposure and commensurate with industry norms. However, claims may
arise in the future, and our insurance coverage may not be adequate to protect us in all circumstances.
Additionally, we can give no assurance that we will be able to maintain adequate insurance coverage in the
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future at an acceptable cost. Any product liability claim not covered by adequate insurance could adversely
affect our results of operations and financial condition.

We must comply with extensive environmental requirements, and any exposure lo environmental liabilities may
adversely affect us.

Federal, state and local requirements relating to the discharge of substances into the environment, the
disposal of hazardous wastes, and other activities affecting the environment have had and may continue to
have an impact on our operations. Management cannot assess the possible effect of compliance with future
environmental requirements or of future environmental claims for which we may not have adequate
indemnification or insurance coverage. If we were required to pay the expenses related to any future
environmental claims for which neither indemnification nor insurance coverage were available, these
expenses could have an adverse impact on our results of operations and financial condition. Information
on an administrative proceeding by the Michigan Department of Environmental Quality is contained
under Item 3 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

We may need to make significant capital expenditures to keep pace with technological developments in our
industry.

The aviation industry is constantly undergoing development and change, and it is likely that new
products, equipment and methods of repair and overhaul services will be introduced in the future. We may
need to make significant capital expenditures to purchase new equipment and to train our employees to
keep pace with any new technological developments. These capital expenditures could adversely affect our
results of operations and financial condition.

Our operations would be adversely affected by a shortage of skilled personnel or work stoppages.

Because of the complex nature of many of our products and services, we are generally dependent on
an educated and highly skilled workforce. Furthermore, we have collective bargaining agreements covering
approximately 650 employees at two of our business units. Qur ability to operate successfully and meet our
customers’ demands could be jeopardized if we are unable to attract and retain a sufficient number of
skilled personnel, inciuding qualified licensed mechanics, to conduct our business, or if we experience a
significant or prolonged work stoppage, and may adversely affect our results of operations and financial
condition.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
Not Applicable.
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ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

Our principal activities in the Aircraft Sales and Leasing segment and parts distribution activities in
the Aviation Supply Chain segment are conducted from a building in Wood Dale, Illinois, which we own
subject to a mortgage. In addition to warehouse space, this facility includes executive, sales and
administrative offices. We also lease facilities in Atlanta and Macon, Georgia; Jacksonville, Florida;
Garden City, New York and London, England, and we own a building near Schiphol International Airport
in the Netherlands to support activities in the Aviation Supply Chain segment.

Our principal activities in the Maintenance, Repair and Overhaul segment are conducted at facilities
leased by us located in Indianapolis, Indiana; Oklahoma City, Oklahoma; Miami, Florida; Roswell, New
Mexico and Hot Springs, Arkansas.

Our principal activities in the Structures and Systems segment are conducted at facilities owned by us
in Clearwater, Florida (subject to an industrial revenue bond); Cadillac and Livonia, Michigan; Goldsboro,
North Carolina and Frankfort, New York. We also lease facilities in Huntsville, Alabama; Cullman,
Alabama; Lebanon, Kentucky and Sacramento, California.

We also operate sales offices which support all our activities and are leased in London, England,
Melbourne, Australia; Paris, France; Rio de Janeiro, Brazil; Shanghai, China; Singapore, Republic of
Singapore and Tokyo, Japan.

We believe that our owned and leased facilitics are suitable and adequate for our operational
requirements,

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
{Dollars in thousands)

Except as described below, we are not a party to any material, pending legal proceeding (including any
governmental or environmental proceedings) other than routine litigation incidental to our business.

AAR Manufacturing, Inc,, a subsidiary of the Company (“subsidiary”) received an Administrative
Order for Response Activity (“Order”) dated August 7, 2003, from the Michigan Department of
Environmental Quality (“MDEQ”) relating to environmental conditions at and in the vicinity of the
subsidiary’s Cadillac, Michigan plant. The Order requires the subsidiary to perform environmental
investigatory work, prepare a feasibility study and a remedial action plan, and perform interim response
actions. The interim response actions include continuation of the response activities the subsidiary is
- performing under a 1985 Consent Decree, operation of a soil vapor extraction system the subsidiary had
previously installed and operated, determination of the need to provide alternate water supplies to off-site
properties (and if it is so determined then to actually provide them), removal of any free phase liquids
encountered in the ground, providing notices of groundwater contamination migration to off-site property
owners, and other actions determined by the MDEQ or the subsidiary to be appropriate. The MDEQ
further demands payment of environmental response costs already incurred by the MDEQ in the
approximate amount of $2,500 plus interest, and reimbursement of unspecified costs to be incurred in the
future by the MDEQ. The Order and the letter accompanying it threaten the imposition of civil fines up to
$25 for each day of violation of the Order, plus exemplary damages up to three times the costs incurred by
the MDEQ if the subsidiary does not comply with the Order. The Order may require the implementation
of the remedial action plan, although it is not clear on that point. The Order requires the implementation
of emergency response action if a release of hazardous substances, threat of a release, or exacerbation of
existing contamination occurs during the pendency of the Order.

The subsidiary advised the MDEQ that it would perform the requirements of the Order to the extent
those requirements apply to the allegation by the MDEQ that a release of hazardous substances occurred
after the execution of the 1985 Consent Decree. The subsidiary declined to perform certain work required
by the Order that the subsidiary believes is based on claims resolved in the 1985 Consent Decree. The
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MDEQ responded to the subsidiary by saying that the MDEQ “will be taking appropriate action to protect
public health, safety and welfare and the environment, and gain AAR’s compliance with Part 2017 (the
Michigan “cleanup law”).

On March 31, 2005, a complaint was filed by the MDEQ in Cadillac, Michigan with the Wexford
County Circuit Court. The case is Michigan Department of Environmental Quality v AAR Cadillac
Manufacturing, a division of AAR Manufacturing Group, Inc., an Hlinois corporation, and AAR Corp., a
Delaware corporation, File No. 05-18853-CE. In its complaint, the MDEQ seeks to enforce the Order
against the subsidiary and to have the Court impose civil fines and exemplary damages upon the subsidiary
for the alleged failure to comply with the Order. The MDEQ seeks to recover its costs incurred in
performing response activities from both the subsidiary and the Company and seeks a declaratory
judgment that both are liable for all future costs incurred by the State at the facility. The MDEQ also seeks
civil fines from the subsidiary for alleged violations of a particular section of a Michigan environmental
law.

The Company and the subsidiary filed their Answer, including Affirmative Defenses, and intend on
vigorously defending the complaint filed by the MDEQ. No trial date has been set.
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ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

No matter was submitted to a vote of security holders during the fourth quarter of the fiscal year
covered by this report.

Supplemental Item:
EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT
Information concerning each of our executive officers is set forth below:

Name Age  Present Position with the Company

David P Storch .......... 55 Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, Director
Timothy J. Romenesko . . . . . 51 President and Chief Operating Officer, Director
Richard J. Poulton ........ 43 Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer
Robert J. Regan.......... 50  Vice President and General Counsel

James J. Clark ........... 48 Group Vice President, Aviation Supply Chain

Michael J. Sharp ......... 46  Vice President, Controller and Chief Accounting Officer
Terry D. Stinson . . ... ..... 66 Group Vice President, Structures and Systems

Mr. Storch was elected Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer in October 2005. Previously,
he served as President and Chief Executive Officer from 1996 to 2005 and Chief Operating Officer from
1989 to 1996. Prior to that, he served as a Vice President of the Company from 1988 to 1989. Mr. Storch
joined the Company in 1979 and also served as president of a major subsidiary from 1984 to 1988.
Mr. Storch has been a director of the Company since 1989.

Mr. Romeneske was appointed President and Chief Operating Officer effective Juae 1, 2007.
Previously, he served as Vice President and Chief Financial Officer since 1994, He also served as
Controller of the Company from 1991 to 1995, and in various other positions since joining the Company in
1981. Mr. Romenesko was appointed a director of the Company in July 2007.

Mr. Poulton was appointed Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer effective June 1, 2007,
Previously he served as Vice President of Acquisitions and Strategic Investments since joining the
Company in September 2006. Prior to joining the Company, he spent ten years in the aviation industry and
held senier executive leadership positions with UAL Corporation, including Senior Vice President of
Business Development and Senior Vice President and Chief Procurement Officer for United Airlines, Inc.

Mr. Regan was appointed Vice President and General Counsel of the Company effective June 1, 2008
after joining the Company as Associate General Counsel on February 28, 2008. Previously, he was a
partner at the law firm of Schiff Hardin LLP since 1989.

Mr. Clark has served as Group Vice President, Aviation Supply Chain since 2005. Previously. he served
in various Group Vice President roles from 2000 to 2005, and previous to that he served as General
Manager of AAR Aircraft Component Services—Amsterdam from 1995 to 2000, and in various other
positions since joining the Company in 1982.

Mr. Sharp has served as Vice President, Controller and Chief Accounting Officer since 1999.
Previously, he served as Controller of the Company from 1996 to 1999. Prior to joining the Company he
was with Kraft Foods from 1994 to 1996, and with KPMG LLP from 1984 to 1994.

Mr. Stinson has served as Group Vice President of Structures and Systems since joining the Company in
the first quarter of fiscal 2008. Previously, he was President of Commercial Operations for Thomas Group,
an operational consulting firm and Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Xelus Inc. Prior to that he
served as Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Bell Helicopter Textron, Inc. from 1991 to 2001 and
before that held leadership positions with United Technologies Corporation (“UTC”), including President
and Chief Executive Officer of Hamilton Standard, a UTC division from 1986 to 1991.

Each executive officer is elected annually by the Board of Directors at the first meeting of the Board
held after the annual meeting of stockholders. Executive officers continue to hold office until their
successors are duly elected or until their death, resignation, termination or reassignment.
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PART I1

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER
MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES
(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

Our Common Stock is traded on the New York Stock Exchange and the Chicagoe Stock Exchange. On
July 1, 2008 there were approximately 7,000 holders of Common Stock, including participants in security
position listings. During fiscal 2008, we purchased 321,700 shares of our common stock on the open market
at an average price of $29.61.

The table below sets forth for each quarter of the past two fiscal years the reported high and low
closing market prices of our Common Stock on the New York Stock Exchange.

Fiscal 2008 Fiscal 2007
Per Common Share Market Prices Market Prices
Quarter High Low High Low
First . .. e $34.86 $28.50 $25.17 $19.50
Second ... ... e 3325 28.88 27.69 2224
Third . ... . 3854 2589 3152 2632
Fourth .. ... ... ... . .. i 2810 1894 3355 2740
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

(In thousands, except per share amounts)
For the Year Ended May 31,

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Sales from continuing operations? . . . ... ... ... .... $1,384,919 51,061,169 $885,518 $740,427 $632,223
Grossprofit. .. ... ... .. . 264,072 184,147 163221 120,575 100,389
Operating iNCOME . . . .. oo it ii i i i, 134,518 95,366° 65,172 34,917 21,612
Gain (loss) on extinguishmentof debt . .. .......... (205) 2,927 (3,893) 3,562 —
Interestexpense . .. ............. ... . ........ 20,578 16,71 18,004 16,917 18,691
Income from continuing operations? . ............. 75,745 59,447 35,823 19,498 5,430
Loss from discontinued operations®. . . .. ....... ... (601) (787) (660)  (4,045)  (1,926)
Net INCOME . . . .ttt e e et et e e et ee e e 75,144 58,600 35,163 15,453 3,504
Share data:
Earnings {loss) per share-basic:
Earnings from continuing operations. . . . ... ..., 3 204 § 163 $ 107 § 060 $ 017
Loss from discontinued operations . ........... (0.02) (0.02) (0.02) (0.12) (0.06)
Earnings per share-basic . . ................. $ 202§ 161 § 105 § 048 § 011
Earnings (loss) per share-diluted:
Earnings from continuing operations. . . .. .... .. $ 1.77 §$ 142 § 09 $ 057 § 017
Loss from discontinued operations . . .. ........ (0.01) (0.02) (0.02) (0.11) {0.06)
Earnings per share-diluted. . .. .............. $ 1.76 § 140 § 094 § 046 $ 0.11
Weighted average common shares outstanding—
basic .. ... 37,194 36,389 33,530 32,207 32,111
Weighted average common shares outstanding—
diluted .. ... .. . . 43,745 43,309 38,852 36205 32,392
FINANCIAL POSITION
Total cash and cash equivalents . ................ $ 109,391 § 83317 $121,738 § 50,338 § 41,010
Working capital . .. .. ... ... . o L 564,932 389,215 436,666 314,517 300,943
Total assets . . ... ..o 1,362,010 1,067,633 978,819 732230 709,292
Short-term recourse debt . . . ... .. .. ... . ..., .. 1,236 51,366 k1 2,123 2,656
Short-term non-recourse debt . . . . ... ... .. ... ... 20,212 22,879 1,928 1,622 736
Long-term recourse debt . . . .. ... .. ... ... ..., 478,308 232,863 293,263 199,919  217,434°
Long-term non-recourse debt . . .. .. ... . ... .. ... 19,190 20,748 25,313 27,240 31,232
Total recourse debt . . ... ... ... ... ... L., 479,544 284,229 293,624 202,042 220,090
Stockholders’ equity . . .. ... ... ... ... . ... ... 585,255 494,243 422,717 314,744 301,684
Number of shares outstanding at end of year . . . . . ... 38,773 37,729 36,654 32,536 32,245
Book value per share of common stock .. .. ........ $§ 1509 % 1310 % 1153 § 966 § 936

Notes:

1

2

In February 2008, we sold $137,500 of 1.625% convertible notes due March 1, 2014 and $112,500 of 2.25%
convertible notes due March 1, 2016, See Note 2 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

During fiscal 2007, we decided to exit our non-core industrial turbine business located in Frankfort, New York. In
February 2005, we sold our engine component repair business located in Windsor, Connecticut. The operating
results and the loss on disposal are classified as discontinued operations. See Note 11 of Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements.

In fiscal 2007 we recorded $7,652 of impairment charges related to engine parts and an aircraft. See Note 13 of
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

In February 2006, we sold $150,000 of 1.75% convertible notes due February 1, 2026. See Note 2 of Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements.

In January and February 2006, we acquired approximately $50,645 aggregate principal amount of our 2.875%
Convertible Senior Notes due February 1, 2024 in exchange for an aggregate 2,724 shares of our common stock
plus $3,893 in cash. See Note 1 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

In February 2004, we sold $75,000 of 2.875% convertible notes due February 1, 2024.
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
{Dollars in thousands)

Forward-Looking Statements

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations contain
certain statements relating to future results, which are forward-looking statements as that term is defined
in the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. These forward-looking statements are based on the
beliefs of management, as well as assumptions and estimates based on information available to us as of the
dates such assumptions and estimates are made, and are subject to certain risks and uncertainties that
could cause actual results to differ materially from historical results or those anticipated, depending on a
variety of factors, including those factors discussed under Item 1A, “Risk Factors”. Should one or more of
those risks or uncertainties materialize adversely, or should underlying assumptions or estimates prove
incorrect, actual results may vary materially from those described. Those events and uncertainties are
difficult or impossible to predict accurately and many are beyond our control. We assume no obligation to
update any forward-looking statements to reflect events or circumstances after the date of such statements
or to reflect the occurrence of anticipated or unanticipated events.

General Overview

We report our activities in four business segments: Aviation Supply Chain; Maintenance, Repair and
Overhaul; Structures and Systems; and Aircraft Sales and Leasing.

Sales in the Aviation Supply Chain segment are derived from the sale and lease of a wide variety of
new, overhauled and repaired engine and airframe parts and components to the commercial aviation and
defense markets, as well as the repair and overhaul of a wide range of commercial and military aircraft
parts and components. We also offer customized programs for inventory supply and management and
performance-based logistics. Sales also include the sale and lease of commercial jet engines. Cost of sales
consists principally of the cost of product (primarily aircraft and engine parts), direct labor and overhead
(primarily indirect labor, facility cost and insurance).

Sales in the Maintenance, Repair and Overhaul.segment are principally derived from aircraft
maintenance and storage and the repair and overhaul of landing gear. Cost of sales consists principally of
the cost of product (primarily replacement aircraft parts), direct labor and overhead.

Sales in the Structures and Systems segment are derived from the engineering, design and
manufacture of containers, pallets and shelters used to support the U.S. military’s tactical deployment
requirements, complex machined and fabricated parts, components and sub-systems for various aerospace
and defense programs and other applications, in-plane cargo loading and handling systems for commercial
and military applications and composite products for aviation and industrial use. Cost of sales consists
principally of the cost of product, direct labor and overhead.

Sales in the Aircraft Sales and Leasing segment are derived from the sale and lease of commercial
aircraft and technical and advisory services. Cost of sales consists principally of the cost of product
(aircraft), labor and the cost of lease revenue (primarily depreciation and insurance).

Our chief operating decision making officer (Chief Executive Officer) evaluates performance based
on the reportable segments and utilizes gross profit as a primary profitability measure. The tables below set
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forth consolidated sales and gross profit for our four business segments for each of the last three fiscal
years ended May 31.

For the Year Ended May 31,

2008 2007 2006
Sales:
Aviation Supply Chain . ............ ... .. ... ......... $ 606,490 $ 543,674 $461,166
Maintenance, Repair and Overhaut . .................... 300,871 211,516 182,258
Structures and Systems . . ... ... 389,428 264,083 228,747
Aircraft Sales and Leasing. . . .............c.coiuninn.. 88,130 41,896 13,347

$1,384,919 31,061,169 $885,518

For the Year Ended May 31,

2008 2007 2006
Gross Profit:
Aviation Supply Chain . ........ ... .. ... . ... .. ... ... $ 145091 $ 114383 § 99,255
Maintenance, Repair and Overhau!l . .................... 43,967 29,915 25,914
Structures and Systems . ... ... ... .. ... 54,673 36,021 33,711
Aircraft Salesand Leasing . . . ....... ... .. ... ......... 20,341 3,828 4,341

$ 264072 § 184,147 $163,221

Business Trends and Highlights

Our consolidated sales growth over the past three fiscal years has been driven by double-digit sales
increases in each of our segments, fueled by market share gains through solid execution across our
segments and broad market acceptance of our value proposition offering commercial and defense
customer’s cost-effective supply solutions. We also benefited from the trend toward outsourcing
maintenance, repair and overhaul and part support activities from commercial and defense customers, as
well as the impact of acquisitions and increased demand from defense customers as a result of the
geo-political environment.

Since the early part of calendar year 2008, most UJ.S. air carriers have announced a new wave of cost
reduction initiatives, including staffing reductions, route consolidations and capacity reductions. We
believe the announced capacity reductions impact 10-15% of the U.S. fleet and principally impact older-
generation narrow-body and certain regional aircraft. The announced fleet reductions are in response to
record high oil prices and softening economic conditions in the U.S., and are expected to be mostly
implemented beginning in the fall of 2008. In addition, certain air carriers have ceased operations. A
reduction in the operating fleet of passenger aircraft both in the U.S. and abroad will result in reduced
demand for parts support and maintenance activities for the type of aircraft affected.

There has also been tightening in the credit markets which may affect our customers’ ability to raise
debt or equity capital. This may reduce the amount of liquidity available to our customers which may limit
their ability to buy parts, services and aircraft. There is also uncertainty over the direction of the U.S.
economy as a result of slower growth rates, higher unemployment and the weak housing market, We are
monitoring economic conditions for their impact on our customers and markets and assessing both risks
and opportunities that may affect our business.

We expect many carriers will continue to seek ways to reduce their cost structure, including
outsourcing more of their maintenance and support functions to third parties, while we belicve other
carriers who have historically outsourced their maintenance requirements will continue to do so. Although
we believe we remain well positioned to respond to the market with our broad range of products and
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services as these trends continue to develop, the factors above may have an adverse impact on our growth
rates and our results of operations and financial condition.

We continue to see opportunities to provide performance-based logistics services and mobility
products supporting our defense customers’ deployment activities. Although it remains difficult for us to
predict long-term demand for these types of products and services, we believe we are well positioned with
our current portfolio of products and services and growth plans to benefit from longer-term U.S. military
deployment and program management strategies.

Results of Operatiens
Fiscal 2008 Compared with Fiscal 2007

Consolidated sales for fiscal 2008 increased $323,750 or 30.5% over fiscal 2007 as all four of our
reportable segments experienced an increase in sales. Overall sales growth was driven by market share
gains through solid execution across our business and broad market acceptance of the Company’s value
proposition of innovative cost savings solutions. Sales to commercial customers increased 27.8% and sales
to defense customers increased 36.7% compared to the prior year. The sales increase to commercial
customers reflects market share gains, increased demand for airframe maintenance and landing gear
overhaul, strength in supply chain programs, successful marketing efforts in international markets,
increased aircraft sales and the impact from acquisitions. Sales to defense customers increased reflecting
the favorable impact of acquisitions and continued strong demand for performance-based logistics
programs and specialized mobility products.

In the Aviation Supply Chain segment, sales increased $62,816 or 11.6% over the prior year. The sales
increase is attributable to strong demand for parts support from defense-related performance-based
logistics programs and aftermarket parts sales to commercial customers. Gross profit in the Aviation
Supply Chain segment increased $30,708 or 26.8% over the prior year primarily due to increased sales
volume, and the gross profit margin percentage increased to 23.9% from 21.0% in the prior year due to the
favorable mix of products sold and the $4,750 impairment charge recorded during the first quarter of fiscal
2007 (see Note 13 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements).

In the Maintenance, Repair and Overhaul segment, sales increased $89,355 or 42.2% over the prior
year. The increase in sales is primarily attributable to increased revenues at the Indianapolis heavy
maintenance facility, greater volume of landing gear overhauls and the inclusion of revenue from Avborne
which was acquired in March 2008 and contributed approximately $16,000 of revenues during fiscal 2008
(see Note 7 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements). Gross profit in the Maintenance, Repair and
Overhaul segment increased $14,052 or 47.0%, and the gross profit percentage increased to 14.6% from
14.1% in the prior year due to increased volume and operational improvement initiatives.

In the Structures and Systems segment, sales increased $125,345 or 47.5% over the prior year. The
sales increase is attributable to sustained high levels of demand and new business wins for specialized
mobility products, and the inclusion of revenue from Brown (acquired in April 2007) and Summa
(acquired in December 2007) which together contributed approximately $88,800 of revenues during fiscal
2008 (see Note 7 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements). Gross profit in the Structures and
Systems segment increased $18,652 or 51.8% compared to the prior year primarily due to increased sales
while the gross profit margin percentage increased slightly to 14.0% from 13.6%.

In the Aircraft Sales and Leasing segment, sales increased $46,234 or 110.4% compared with the same
period last year driven by the sale of five aircraft from our wholly-owned portfolio. Gross profit in the
Aircraft Sales and Leasing segment increased $16,513 as a result of increased aircraft sales and the $2,902
impairment charge recorded during the first quarter of fiscal 2007 (see Note 13 of Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements). Our recent strategy in the Aircraft Sales and Leasing segment has been to invest in
aircraft mostly through participation in joint ventures and for our own account. During fiscal 2008, we
purchased 20 aircraft with joint venture partners, all of which are currently on lease. At May 31, 2008, the
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total number of aircraft held in joint ventures was 29 (see Note 8 of Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements). Earnings from joint ventures declined $5,004 as aircraft joint ventures had less sales activity in
fiscal 2008 compared to fiscal 2007. We also own eight aircraft outside of the joint ventures. Of the eight
aircraft owned by us outside the aircraft joint ventures, four were acquired prior to September 11, 2001.

Operating income increased $39,152 or 41.1% compared to the same period last year due to increased
sales and gross profit, partially offset by an increase in seiling, general and administrative expenses. Selling,
general and administrative expenses increased $30,411 reflecting the impact of acquisitions, increased
spending to support growth and investments in operational improvement initiatives. Interest expense
increased $3,877 as a result of an increase in the average outstanding borrowings under our unsecured
revolving credit facility to support growth, as well as an increase in non-recourse borrowings to acquire
aircraft. Interest income and other decreased $3,476 principally as a result of lower yields on invested cash,
as well as a decline in average invested cash balances. Our effective income tax rate increased to 34.8%
compared to 32.0% in the prior year due to the expiration of certain income tax benefits on export
activities.

During the third quarter of fiscal 2007, we decided to exit our non-core industrial turbine business,
which was part of the Structures and Systems segment, and classified the results as a discontinued
operation (see Note 11 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements).

Income from continuing operations was $75,745 compared to $59,447 in the prior year due to the
factors discussed above.

Fiscal 2007 Compared with Fiscal 2006

Consolidated sales for fiscal 2007 increased $175,651 or 19.8% over the prior year. Each reporting
segment experienced sales growth with sales to commercial customers increasing 24.3% and sales to
defense customers up 14.4% compared to the prior year. The sales increase to commercial customers
reflects the improved commercial airline environment, our expanded presence in global markets, growth in
supply chain programs, and increased demand for airframe maintenance and landing gear overhaul
services. Sales to defense customers increased as we continue to experience strong demand for
performance-based logistics programs and specialized mobility products and the impact from acquisitions.

Sales in the Aviation Supply Chain segment increased $82,508 or 17.9% over the prior year. The sales
increase reflects strong demand for engine and airframe parts from commercial custemers due to
improved sourcing and program execution as well as the implementation of new supply chain programs.
The increase in sales to defense customers was driven by continued strong demand for parts support from
performance-based logistics programs. Gross profit in the Aviation Supply Chain segment increased
$15,128 or 15.2% over the prior year primarily due to increased sales volume, partially offset by an
impairment charge of $4,750 recorded in this segment during the first quarter of fiscal 2007 (see Note 13 of
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements). The gross profit margin percentage decreased slightly to
21.0% from 21.5% in the prior year due to the unfavorable mix of products sold and the impairment
charge.

In the Maintenance, Repair and Overhaul segment, sales increased $29,258 or 16.1% over the prior
year. The increase in sales is primarily attributable to increased demand for landing gear overhaul services
as well as airframe maintenance at our Oklahoma and Indianapolis airframe maintenance facilities. Gross
profit in the Maintenance, Repair and Overhaul segment increased $4,001 or 15.4% over the prior year
due to the increase in sales and the gross profit margin percentage decreased slightly to 14.1% from 14.2%.
The gross profit margin improved at our landing gear and Oklahoma airframe maintenance businesses due
to increased sales and operational efficiencies. The gross profit margin declined at our Indianapolis
airframe maintenance facility due to start-up inefficiencies associated with new customers.

In the Structures and Systems segment, sales increased $35,336 or 15.4% over the prior year. The
increase in sales was primarily due to the development and delivery of increasingly complex and specialized
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shelter products and higher volume of pallets at our Mobility Systems business. Sales also increased duc to
the inclusion of $12,368 of revenue from Brown which was acquired during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2007
(see Note 7 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements). Sales of our cargo systems were lower as we
relocated production to a new manufacturing facility in North Carolina. Gross profit in the Structures and
Systems segment increased $2,310 or 6.9% compared to the prior year due to the increase in sales. The
gross profit margin percentage decreased from 14.7% to 13.6% due to the mix of products sold, primarily
at our Mobility Systems business.

In the Aircraft Sales and Leasing segment, sales increased $28,549 due to more aircraft sales
compared to the prior year. During fiscal 2007, our joint ventures purchased six aircraft and sold ten. The
increase in earnings from aircraft joint ventures compared to the prior year is primarily due to the sale of
the ten aircraft. At May 31, 2007, the total number of aircraft held in joint ventures was 12. Qur strategy in
the Aircraft Sales and Leasing segment is to build an aircraft portfolio through participation in joint
ventures and for our own account. At May 31, 2007, we owned nine aircraft outside of the joint ventures.
Of the nine aircraft owned by us outside the aircraft joint ventures, five were acquired prior to
September 11, 2001. Gross profit in the Aircraft Sales and Leasing segment decreased $513 compared to
the prior year principally due to the impairment charge of $2,902 recorded during the first quarter of fiscal
2007 (see Note 13 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements).

In the first quarter of fiscal 2007, we recorded an impairment charge of $4,750 in the Aviation Supply
Chain segment for engine parts that were acquired prior to September 11, 2001, and were subject to
impairment charges recorded in prior years. This impairment charge was triggered by our decision to
aggressively pursue the liquidation of this inventory. We made this decision to recognize the impairment
due to the impact of persistently high fuel costs and fewer operators on demand for these parts, as well as
to better align human and physical resources with higher potential opportunities in the rapidly growing
Aviation Supply Chain segment (see Note 13 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements). In the
Aircraft Sales and Leasing segment, we recorded an impairment charge of $2,902 during the first quarter
of 2007 on a wide-body aircraft originally purchased prior to September 11, 2001. The lease and
non-recourse debt on the aircraft were restructured during the quarter, and we made the decision to offer
the aircraft for sale and recorded the impairment charge to reduce the carrying value of the aircraft to
estimated net realizable value. As part of the restructuring, the lender of the non-recourse debt reduced
the outstanding principal balance by $2,927 which resulted in a gain on extinguishment of the same
amount.

During the first quarter of fiscal 2007, we sold substantially all assets, subject to certain liabilities, of a
product line within our Structures and Systems segment. Proceeds from the sale of the product line were
$6,567 and the net carrying value of the assets sold was $1,209, resulting in a gain on sale of product line of
$5,358. The gain on this transaction has been classified as a component of operating income in accordance
with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or
Disposal of Long-Lived Assets”.

Operating income increased $30,194 or 46.3% compared with the prior year’s period due to increased
sales, increased earnings from aircraft joint ventures and the gain on the sale of a product line, partially
offset by impairment charges and an increase in sciling, general and administrative expenses. In fiscal 2007,
our selling, general and administrative expenses increased $5,540 or 5.6% over the prior year primarily due
to increased resources to support our growth. Selling, general and administrative expenses as a percentage
of sales decreased to 9.9% compared to 11.2% in the prior year. Interest expense decreased $1,3030r 7.2%
primarily due to a reduction in average outstanding borrowings on our revolving credit agreements during
fiscal 2007, as well as capitalized interest of $977. Interest income and other increased $2,593 or 80.1% due
to higher average invested cash during the current fiscal year, as well as a 8915 gain on sale of an equity
security. Our effective income tax rate for fiscal 2007 was 32.0% compared to 23.0% in the prior year due
to lower tax benefits on export activities.
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During the third quarter of fiscal 2007, we decided to exit our non-core industrial turbine business,
which was part of the Structures and Systems segment, and classified the results as a discontinued
operation. Sales for this business were $7,778 in fiscal 2007 (see Note 11 of Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements).

Net income increased to $58,660 for fiscal 2007 compared to $35,163 in the prior year due to the
factors discussed above.

Legal Matters

AAR Manufacturing, Inc., a subsidiary of the Company (“subsidiary™) received an Administrative
Order for Response Activity (“Order”) dated August 7, 2003, from the Michigan Department of
Environmental Quality (“MDEQ”) relating to environmental conditions at and in the vicinity of the
subsidiary’s Cadillac, Michigan plant. The Order requires the subsidiary to perform environmental
investigatory work, prepare a feasibility study and a remedial action plan, and perform interim response
actions. The interim response actions include continuation of the response activities the subsidiary is
performing under a 1985 Consent Decree, operation of a soil vapor extraction system the subsidiary had
previously installed and operated, determination of the need to provide alternate water supplies to off-site
properties (and if it is so determined then to actually provide them), removal of any free phase liquids
encountered in the ground, providing notices of groundwater contamination migration to off-site property
owners, and other actions determined by the MDEQ or the subsidiary to be appropriate. The MDEQ
further demands payment of environmental response costs already incurred by the MDEQ in the
approximate amount of $2,500 plus interest, and reimbursement of unspecified costs to be incurred in the
future by the MDEQ. The Order and the letter accompanying it threaten the imposition of civil fines up to
$25 for each day of violation of the Order, plus exemplary damages up to three times the costs incurred by
the MDEQ if the subsidiary does not comply with the Order. The Order may require the implementation
of the remedial action plan, although it is not clear on that point. The Order requires the implementation
of emergency response action if a release of hazardous substances, threat of a release, or exacerbation of
existing contamination occurs during the pendency of the Order.

The subsidiary advised the MDEQ) that it would perform the requirements of the Order to the extent
those requirements apply to the allegation by the MDEQ that a release of hazardous substances occurred
after the execution of the 1985 Consent Decree. The subsidiary declined to perform certain work required
by the Order that the subsidiary believes is based on claims resolved in the 1985 Consent Decree. The
MDEQ responded to the subsidiary by saying that the MDEQ “will be taking appropriate action to protect
public health, safety and welfare and the environment, and gain AAR’s compliance with Part 2017 (the
Michigan “cleanup law’).

On March 31, 2005, a complaint was filed by the MDEQ in Cadillac, Michigan with the Wexford
County Circuit Court. The case is Michigan Department of Environmental Quality v AAR Cadillac
Manufacturing, a division of AAR Manufacturing Group, Inc., an lllinois corporation, and AAR Corp, a
Delaware corporation, File No. 05-18853-CE. In its complaint, the MDEQ seeks to enforce the Order
against the subsidiary and to have the Court impose civil fines and exemplary damages upon the subsidiary
for the alleged failure to comply with the Order. The MDEQ seeks to recover its costs incurred in
performing response activities from both the subsidiary and the Company and seeks a declaratory
judgment that both are liable for all future costs incurred by the State at the facility. The MDEQ also seeks
civil fines from the subsidiary for alleged violations of a particular section of a Michigan environmental
law.

The Company and the subsidiary filed their Answer, including Affirmative Defenses, and intend on
vigorously defending the complaint filed by the MDEQ. No trial date has been set.

In the opinion of management, the ultimate disposition of these matters will not have a material
adverse effect on our consolidated financial condition or results of operations.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

Historically, we have funded our operating activities and met our commitments through the
generation of cash from operations, augmented by the periodic issuance of common stock and debt in the
public and private markets. In addition to these cash sources, our current capital resources include our
unsecured credit facility. We continually evaluate various financing arrangements, including the issuance of
common stock or debt, which would allow us to improve our liguidity position and finance future growth
on commercially reasonable terms. Our continuing ability to borrow from our lenders and issue debt and
equity securities to the public and private markets in the future may be negatively affected by a number of
factors, including general economic conditions, airline industry conditions, geo-political events, including
the war on terrorism, and our operating performance. Our ability to generate cash from operations is
influenced primarily by our operating performance and changes in working capital. We have a universal
shelf registration on file with the Securities and Exchange Commission under which, subject to market
conditions, up to $163,675 of common stock, preferred stock or medivm- or long-term debt securities may
be issued or sold.

At May 31, 2008, our liquidity and capital resources included cash of $109,391 and working capital of
$564,932. On August 31, 2007, we amended our credit agreement dated August 31, 2006 (the “Credit
Agreement”) with various financial institutions, as lenders, and LaSalle Bank National Association, as
administrative agent for the lenders (the “Amendment”}. The Amendment increased our unsecured
revolving credit amount to $250,000 from $140,000. Under certain circumstances, we may request an
increase to the revolving commitment by an aggregate amount of up to $75,000, not to exceed $325,000 in
total. The Amendment extended the term of our Credit Agreement from August 31, 2010 to August 31,
2011. The Amendment also modified the borrowing rate of the Credit Agreement and borrowings now
bear interest at the London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) plus 100 to 225 basis points based on
certain financial measurements. In March 2008, a second amendment to the Credit Agreement modified
the borrowing rate to LIBOR plus 100 to 237.5 basis points based on certain financial measurements.
There were no borrowings outstanding under this facility at May 31, 2008, however, there were
approximately $18,000 of letters of credit against this facility. In addition to our domestic facility, we also
have $2,479 available under a foreign line of credit. During February 2008, we completed the sale of
$250,000 of convertible notes, consisting of $137,500 aggregate principal amount of 1.625% convertible
senior notes due 2014 and $112,500 aggregate principal amount of 2.25% convertible senior notes due
2016 (see Note 2 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements).

During fiscal 2008, we generated $16,926 of cash from operations reflecting net income and
depreciation and amortization of $115,096, an increase of accrued liabilities of $19,131 and a reduction in
accounts receivable of $12,428. During fiscal 2008, cash flow from operations was unfavorably impacted by
investments in inventories and equipment on short-term lease of $87,028 to support growth in the Aviation
Supply Chain and Structures and Systems segments and a reduction in accounts payable of $26,078.

During fiscal 2008, our investing activities used $141,965 of cash principally as a result of the
acquisitions of Summa and Avborne of $85,210, investments in aircraft joint ventures of $23,609 reflecting
the purchase of 20 aircraft with our partner, and capital expenditures of $30,334.

During fiscal 2008, we generated $151,021 of cash from financing activities primarily due to the net
proceeds received from the issuance of the $250,000 convertible senior notes, proceeds from borrowings
related to aircraft financings of $22,681, proceeds from a capital lease obligation of $12,880, proceeds from
the sale of warrants related to the convertible note offering of $40,114, proceeds from stock option
exercises of $6,169 and tax benefits from the exercise of stock options of $4,657. Uses of cash from
financing activities included the purchase of note hedges related to the convertible note offering of
$69,676, purchase of treasury stock of $9,527, financing costs associated with debt issuances of $6,653 and
reduction in borrowings of $99,541.
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Contractual Obligations and Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

A summary of contractual obligations and off-balance sheet arrangements as of May 31, 2008 is as
follows:

Payments Due by Period

Due in Due in Due in Due in  Duein Alter
Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal
Total 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
On Balance Sheet:
Debt...................... $478,508 3§ 200 $ 200 $42,108 § — § - $436,000
Non-recourse Debt ... ........ 39,402 20,212 2,462 2,656 2,860 9274 1,938
Capital Leases . . . ............ 11,966 1,546 1,694 1,756 1,904 5,066 —
Bank Borrowings . ............ 1,036 1,036 — — — — —
Interest . . .................. 110,990 14,955 14,252 14,1001 10,250 9,766 47,666
Off Balance Sheet:
Aviation Equipment Operating
Leases ................... 5,120 3,840 1,280 — — — —
Facilities and Equipment
Operating Leases . . ......... 63,681 13,258 9,085 7.857T 6,733 6,613 20,135
Garden City, New York Operating
Lease.................... 27,637 1,492 1,529 1,567 1,606 1,647 19,796
Purchase Obligations .......... 176,571 159,023 5,163 9,558 2,827 —_ —
Pension Contribution .......... 4,000 4,000 — — — — —

Purchase obligations arise in the ordinary course of business and represent a binding commitment to
acquire inventory, including raw materials, parts and components, as well as equipment to support the
operations of our business. We routinely issue letters of credit and performance bonds in the ordinary
course of business. These instruments are typicaily issued in conjunction with insurance contracts or other
business requirements. The total of these instruments outstanding at May 31, 2008 was approximately
$18,032.

Critical Accounting Policies and Significant Estimates

Qur consolidated financial statements are prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States. Management has made estimates and assumptions relating to the reporting
of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities to prepare the consolidated financial
statements. The most significant estimates made by management include those related to the allowance for
doubtful accounts, adjustments 10 reduce the value of inventories and aviation equipment on or available
for lease, revenue recognition, loss accruals for aviation equipment operating leases, program development
costs and assumptions used in determining pension plan obligations. Accordingly, actual results could
differ materially from those estimates. The following is a summary of the accounting policies considered
critical by management.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Our allowance for doubtful accounts is intended to reduce the value of customer accounts receivable
to amounts expected to be collected. In determining the required allowance, we consider factors such as
general and industry-specific economic conditions, customer credit history, and the customer’s current and
expected future financial performance.
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Inventories

[nventories are valued at the lower of cost or market. Cost is determined by the specific identification,
average cost or first-in, first-out methods. Provisions are made for excess and obsolete inventories and
inventories that have been impaired as a result of industry conditions. We have utilized certain assumptions
when determining the market value of inventories, such as historical sales of inventory, current and
expected future aviation usage trends, replacement values and expected future demand. During the first
quarter of fiscal 2007, we recorded an impairment charge related to certain engine parts in the amount of
$4,750. These parts were acquired prior to September 11, 2001, and were subject to impairment charges
recorded in fiscal 2002 and 2003. The fiscal 2007 impairment charge was triggered by the Company’s
decision to aggressively pursue the liquidation of this inventory. The Company made this decision to
recognize the impairment due to the impact of persistently high fuel costs and reduced demand for these
parts, as well as to better align human and physical resources with higher potential opportunities in the
rapidly growing Aviation Supply Chain segment. Reductions in demand for certain of our inventories or
declining market values, as well as differences between actual results and the assumptions utilized by us
when determining the market value of our inventories, could result in additional impairment charges in
future periods.

Revenue Recognition

Certain supply chain management programs that we provide to our customers contain multiple
elements or deliverables, such as program and warehouse management, parts distribution and
maintenance and repair services. We recognize revenue for each element or deliverable that can be
identified as a separate unit of accounting at the time of delivery based upon the relative fair value of the
products and services. In connection with these programs, we are required to make certain judgments and
estimates concerning the overall profitability of the program and the relative fair value of each element of
the arrangement. Differences may occur between the judgments and estimates made by management and
actual program results.

Equipment on or Available for Lease

The cost of assets under lease is original purchase price plus overhaul costs. Depreciation is computed
using the straight-line method over the estimated service life of the equipment, and maintenance costs are
expensed as incurred.

In accordance with SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived
Assets”, we are required to test for impairment of long-lived assets whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate the carrying value of an asset may not be recoverable from its undiscounted cash
flows. When applying the provisions of SFAS No. 144 to equipment on or available for lease, we have
utilized certain assumptions to estimate future undiscounted cash flows, including current and future lease
rates, lease terms, residual values and market conditions and trends impacting future demand. Differences
between actual results and the assumptions utilized by us when determining undiscounted cash flows could
result in future impairments of aircraft and engines which are currently being leased or are available for
lease.

Program Development Costs

In June 2005, we announced that our Cargo Systems business was selected to provide cargo handling
systems for the new A400M cargo aircraft. We are subcontractor to PFW on this Airbus program. Our
portion of the revenue from this program is expected to exceed $300,000 through fiscal 2015, based on
sales projections of the A400M. As of May 31, 2008, we have incurred approximately $43,000 of costs
associated with the engineering and development of the cargo system and have capitalized these costs in
accordance with SOP 81-1 “Accounting for Performance of Construction—Type and Certain Production—




Type Contracts”. Sales and related cost of sales will be recognized on the units of delivery method. In
determining the recoverability of the capitalized program development costs, we have utilized certain
judgments and estimates concerning expected revenues and the cost to manufacture the A400M cargo
system. Differences between actual results and the assumptions utilized by us may result in us not fully
recovering the value of the program development costs, which would unfavorably impact our financial
condition and results of operations.

Pension Plans

The liabilities and net periodic cost of our pension plans are determined utilizing several actuarial
assumptions, the most significant of which are the discount rate and the expected long-term rate of return
on plan assets.

Our discount rate ts determined based on a review of long-term, high quality corporate bonds as of
May 31, 2008 and models that match projected benefit payments to coupons and maturities from the high
quality bonds. The assumption for the expected long-term return on plan assets is developed through
analysis of historical asset returns by investment category, our fund’s actual return experience and current
market conditions. Changes in the discount rate and differences between expected and actual return on
plan assets may impact the amount of net periodic pension expense recognized in our consolidated
statement of operations.

New Accounting Standards

In September 2007, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued SFAS No. 157
(SFAS 157) “Fair Value Measurements.” SFAS 157 establishes a framework for measuring fair value in
generally accepted accounting principles, and expands disclosures about fair value measurements.
SFAS 157 is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007 for financial assets and liabilities,
as well as for any other assets that are carried at fair value on a recurring basis in financial statements. In
November 2007, the FASB provided a one year deferral of the implementation of SFAS 157 for other
non-financial assets and liabilities. We continue to review the impact of SFAS 157 on our financial
statements, but do not expect a material impact on our results of operations or financial condition.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159 (SFAS 159}, “The Fair Value Option for Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities—Including an Amendment to FASB Statement No. 115.”” SFAS 159 allows
companies, at specified clection dates, the option to measure certain financial assets and liabilities at fair
value. The election, which is applied on an instrument by instrument basis, is typically irrevocable once
made. Subsequent unrealized gains and losses on items for which the fair value option has been elected are
to be reported in earnings. SFAS 159 is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. We
continue to review the impact of SFAS 159 on our financial statements, but do not expect a material impact
on our results of operations or financial condition.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 160 (SFAS 160), “Noncontrolling Interests in
Consolidated Financial Statements—an Amendment of ARB 51.” This statement amends ARB 51 to
establish accounting and reporting standards for the noncontrolling interest (minority interest) in a
subsidiary and for the deconsolidation of a subsidiary. Upon its adoption, effective for us as of June 1,
2009, noncontrolling interests will be classified as equity in the Company’s financial statements and income
and comprehensive income attributed to the noncontrolling interest will be included in the Company’s
income and comprehensive income. The provisions of this standard must be applied retrospectively upon
adoption. We are currently evaluating the impact of adopting SFAS 160 on our results of operations and
financial position.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141 (revised 2007) (SFAS 141(R)), “Business
Combinations”. SFAS 141(R) establishes principles and requirements for how an acquirer in a business
combination recognizes and measures the assets acquired, liabilities assumed, and any noncontrolling
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interest in the acquiree. The provisions of SFAS 141(R) are effective for our business combinations
occurring on or after June 1, 2009.

In March 2008, the FASB issued SFAS No. 161 (SFAS 161), “Disclosures about Derivative
Instruments and Hedging Activities.” SFAS 161 amends and expands the disclosure requirements of SFAS
No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities”, and is effective for fiscal years
beginning after November 15, 2008. We do not expect the adoption of SFAS 161 will have a material
impact on our results of operations or financial condition.

In May 2008, the FASB issued Staff Position FSP APB 14-1 (FSP APB 14-1), “Accounting for
Convertible Debt Instruments That May Be Settled in Cash upon Conversion (Including Partial Cash
Settlement)”. FSP APB 14-1 requires companies that have issued convertible debt that may be settled
wholly or partly in cash when converted, to account for the debt and equity components separately. The
value assigned to the bond liability is the estimated value of a similar bond without the conversion feature
as of the issvance date. The difference between the proceeds for the convertible debt and the amount
reflected as a bond liability is recorded as additional paid-in-capital. Interest expense is recorded using the
issuer’s comparable debt rate. FSP APB 14-1 will be effective for us beginning June 1, 2009 (fiscal 2010)
and will require retrospective application. We continue to review the impact of FSP APB 14-1 on our
financial statements, however, we are currently estimating, based on the outstanding convertible notes at
May 31, 2008, the implementation of FSP APB 14-1 will result in a reduction of our convertible notes of
approximately $95,000, an increase in capital surplus of approximately $62,000 and an increase in deferred
taxes of approximately $33,000. In addition, we expect the implementation of FSP APB 14-1 will reduce
our diluted earnings per share by $0.12 to $0.15 per share in fiscal 2010.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK
(Dollars in thousands}

Our exposure to market risk includes fluctuating interest rates under our credit agreemeﬁls, foreign
exchange rates and accounts receivable. See Part II, Item 8 for a discussion on accounts receivable
exposure. During fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006, we did not utilize derivative financial instruments to offset
these risks.

At May 31, 2008, $231,968 was available under our Credit Agreement. Interest on amounts borrowed
under this credit facility is LIBOR based. As of May 31, 2008, the outstanding balance under this
agreement was $0. A hypothetical 10 percent increase to the average interest rate under the credit facilities
applied to the average outstanding balance during fiscal 2008 would have reduced our pre-tax income by
approximately $215 during fiscal 2008.

Revenues and expenses of our foreign operations are translated at average exchange rates during the
year, and balance sheet accounts are translated at year-end exchange rates. Balance sheet translation
adjustments are excluded from the results of operations and are recorded in stockholders’ equity as a
component of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss). A hypothetical 10 percent devaluation of
foreign currencies against the U.S. dollar would not have had a material impact on our financial position or
results of operations.
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
TO THE STOCKHOLDERS AND BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF AAR CORE:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of AAR CORP. and subsidiaries (the
Company) as of May 31, 2008 and 2007 and the related consolidated statements of operations,
stockholders’ equity and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended May 31, 2008.
These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our
audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of AAR CORP. and subsidiaries as of May 31, 2008 and 2007 and the results
of their operations and their cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended May 31, 2008,
in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States), the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of
May 31, 2008, based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO), and our report dated
July 10, 2008 expressed an unqualified opinion on the effective operation of internal control over financial
reporting,

/s/f KPMG LLP

Chicago, INinois
July 10, 2008
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AAR CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Sales:

Sales from products . ...... ... . ..o
Sales from SEIVICES .. ... ..o i it
Sales fromleasing . .. ...... ... . ..

Costs and operating expenses:

Costof products . . ... oot ve i
Cost of SEIVICES . .. ..o i e
Costofleasing . ........cuiuunn e
Cost of sales-impairment charges . . .......... .. ... ...
Selling, general and administrative and other .. ............

Gainonsale of productline .. .. ... ... ... ..
Earnings from joint ventures. . ........ ... i

Operating iNCOME . . . ..ottt e i ians s
Gain (loss) on extinguishment of debt . . .. .......... ... ...
Interest €XPeNSe . . . oo v vttt e

Interest income and other. . ...... ... i

Income from continuing operations before provision for income
17 (= S

Provision for inCome taxes .. .... ... ..o vceeenonrnnennen

Income from continuing operations . . . ...........c.v oot
Discontinued operations:
Operating loss, netof tax . ......... ... ... i,

NELIMCOME & o v vttt ettt et e e e te b te e araasnaeaeas

Earnings per share—basic:
Earnings from continuing operations . ...................
Loss from discontinued operations . . . .. .................

Earnings per share—basic . ............ ... ... o

Eamnings per share—diluted:
Earnings from continuing operations . ...................
Loss from discontinued operations . . . ...................

Earnings per share—diluted .................. ... ...,

For the Year Ended May 31,

2008

2007

2006

{In thousands except per share data}

$1,145625 § 882,509 $732,908
202,627 150,400 128,182
36,667 28260 24,428
1384919 1,061,169 885518
930,649 724,419 603,643
168,888 126372 102,709
21,310 18,579 15,945
— 7,652 -
135,502 105,091 99,551
1,256,349 982,113 821,848
— 5,358 —
5,948 10,952 1,502
134,518 95366 65,172
(205) 2927  (3,893)
(20,578)  (16,701)  (18,004)
2,353 5829 3,236
116,088 87421 46,511
40,343 27974 10,688
75,745 59447 35823
(601) (187)  (660)

$ 75144 $ 58,660 $ 35,163
$ 204 $ 163 $ 107
(0.02) 0.02)  (0.02)

$ 202 8 161 $ 105
$ 177 $ 142 $ 096
(0.01) 0.02)  (0.02)

$ 176 $ 140 $ 094

The accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
are an integral part of these statements.
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AAR CORF. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

ASSETS
May 31,
2008 2007
(In thousands)
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents . ........... .. i rnnn. $ 109,391 §$ 83,317
Accounts receivable . . . . . ... .. 202,472 181,691
INVentories . . ... i e e e e 296,610 244,661
Equipment on or available for short-term lease . .. .................. 138,998 97,932
Deposits, prepaids and other ... ... ... ... ... .. ... 17,657 12,607
Deferred tax assets .. ... ... . e e 18,303 25,513
Total current assets . ... ... .. i e 783,431 645,721
Property, plant and equipment, at cost:
Land . ... e e 4,842 4,828
Buildings and improvements . ........... .. .. . i 110,202 69,564
Equipment, furniture and fixtures. . . ... ....... ... .. ... .. .. ... 197,461 159,313
312,505 233,705
Accumulated depreciation . . .. ... .. . L e (166,070)  (145,518)
146,435 88,187
Other assets:
Goodwill and other intangible assets, net .. ................. ...... 129,719 74,267
Equipment on long-term lease .. ...... ... ... o, 163,958 171,980
Investment in joint ventures . . . .. .. ... ... e 42,734 17,824
Other . ... e e e 95,733 69,654

432,144 333,725
$1,362,010 $1,067,633

The accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
are an integral part of these statements.
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AAR CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Current liabilities:
Short-term debt. .. ... ... ..
Current maturities of long-termdebt . ... ... ... ... ... ... oL
Current maturities of non-recourse long-termdebt . .................
Current maturities of long-term capital lease obligations . .. ...........
Accounts payable . ... ...
Accrued liabilities . .. .. ... . e e

Total current liabilities . . . ... ... o i e e

Long-term debt, less current maturities .. ... ... ... . i i
Non-recourse debt . .. . o i e e e e e
Capital lease obligations .. ....... ... ... .. i
Deferred tax labilities . . . .. . .. vt i e e e,
Other liabilities and deferred income . .. .. .. . oottt e

Stockholders” equity:

Preferred stock, $1.00 par value, authorized 250 shares; none issued . .. . ..

Common stock, $1.00 par value, authorized 100,000 shares; issued 43,932
and 42,230 shares, respectively .. ... ... . i

Capital surplus ... ... ..

Retained earnings - . . . .. .. .. ou ittt nainna

Treasury stock, 5,159 and 4,501 shares at cost, respectively . ............

Accumulated other comprehensive loss . . ... ... ... L oo

May 31,

2008

2007

(In thousands)

$ 1,036 $ —
200 51,366
20,212 22,879
1,546 —
99,073 110,239
96,432 72,022
218499 256,506
478308 232,863
19,190 20,748
10,420 —
28,011 40,121
22,327 23,152
558256 316,884
43,932 42,230
324074 289,673
331,196 256,052
(100,935)  (79,813)
(13,012)  (13,899)
585,255 494,243

$1,362,010  $1,067,633

The accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements

are an integral part of these statements.

3



AAR CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
FOR THE THREE YEARS ENDED MAY 31, 2008

Balance, May 31,2005 ..., ..........
Netincome . . . .................
Exercise of stock options and stock awards . .
Restricted stock activity . .. ....... ..

Common stock issued in debt for equity

transaction . . .. ... ..o
Adjustment for net translation gain . . . ..
Minimum pension liability, net of tax . . . .

Comprehensive income . . .. ... .....,

Balance, May 31,2006 ..............
Netincome . . .. .. ..............
Exercise of stock options and stock awards . .

Tax benefit related to share-based plans

Restricted stock activity . ... ........

Adjustment for net translation gain . . . . .
Minimum pension liability, net of tax . . . .
Adoption of SFAS No. 158, net of tax. . . .

Comprehensive income . . . ..., .,....

Balance, May 31,2007 .. ... .........
Netincome . .. .................
Exercise of stock options and stock awards . .
Repurchase of shares . . . ... ........

Tax benefit related to share-based plans

Restricted stock activity . ... ........

Common stock issued in debt for equity

ransaction . . . ...

Purchase of hedge on convertible debt, net

oftax . ... .. ... o o
Issuance of warrants . . ... ..., ,....
Adjustment for net translation gain . .. ..
Unrealized gains on securities, net of tax . . .

Change in unrecognized pension and post

retirement costs, netof tax . . ..., . ..
Comprehensive income . . . ... ... .. ..

Balance, May 31,2008 ..............

E:e&:_irnﬁ Acc?)ml:llaled
trict t
Common Stock _ Treasury Stock Capital  Retained gtocck Comprehe;:she Comprehensive
Shares Amount Shares Amount Surplus Earnings Awards Income (Loss) Income
(In thousands)
35,853 $35,853 3,267 § (50,497)5189,617 $162,229 $(2,679) $(19.779)
—_ — — — — 35,163 — -— $ 35,163
2212 2212 B6B  (19,167) 37.876 — — -— —
—_ — — — — —  (3,490) -— —
2,724 2,724 — 48,718 — — —
— _— _ — — — — 1,058 1,058
—_ — — —_ 4.879 4,879
$ 41,100
40,789 340,780 4,135 § (69,664)8274,211 $197,392 $(6,169) $(13,842)
— —_ —_ — — 58,660 — -— $ 58,660
1441 1441 366 (10,149) 14,230 s — -— —
- — —  (3113) — 6,169 — —
— —_ — — _ — 1,559 1,559
—_ — — — — — 1,921 1,921
— _ — — _— — (3,557) —
$ 62,140
42,230 $42,230 4,501 § (79,813)5289,673 $256,052 § — $(13,899)
—_ — — - — , _— -— § 75,144
773 773 336 (11,595) 13,817 —_ — -— —
_— — 322 (9,527) — _ —_ -— —
— - — — 4,657 — — -— —
49 49 — — 5,818 —_— — -— —
880 880 - — 15,284 —_ — —_ —
—_ _ —  (45,289) _ — —
- — — — 40,114 —_— — — —
—_ — — — — 5284 5,284
— — —_ — — —_ — 65 65
—_ — — —_— — - — (4,462) (4,462)
§ 76,031
43,932 $43,932 5,159 $(100,935)$324,074 $331,196 § — $(13,012)

The accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
are an integral part of these statements.
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AAR CORPF. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Cash flows provided from (used in) operating activities:
NetinCome . . ...ttt e e e i e e
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided from (used in) operating
activities:

Depreciation and amortization . ... ... ...... ... ... . . . . ...
Deferred tax provision——continuing operations . . . .. .. ...............
Tax benefits from exercise of stock options . ... ....................
Gainonsaleof productline . . . ........... .. ... . .
Impairment charges .. ... ... .. ... . ... e
Loss (gain) on extinguishment of debt . . ... ... ... ... ............
Earnings from joint ventures . . ... ... ... .. v i ia it
Gainonsale of investment. . . . . ... .. ... .. .. ...

Changes in certain assets and liabilities, net of acquisitions:
Accounts and trade notesreceivable . ... ... .. oo Lo ool
Inventories. .. ... e e e e
Equipment on or available for short-term lease . . . . .. ..............
Equipment on long-term lease . .. . ... ... .. e
Accountspayable . ... ... ..
Accrued liabilities and taxesonincome . .. ... .. L Lol
Other liabilities . . . ... ... . e

Net cash provided from (used in) operating activities . . . .. ..............

Cash flows used in investing activities:
Property, plant and equipment expenditures ............... ... ... .....
Proceeds from disposal of assets . . ... ... ... i i e
Proceeds from sale of product line. ... ... .. ... i i
Proceeds from sale of available for sale securities . . .. ............ ... ....
Investment in available for sale securities .. ......... ... ... .. ... .. ...,
Companies acquired, netofcash . . .. ...... ... ... .. ... .. .. ... .. ...,
Proceeds from aircraft joint ventures . .. ... ... o i
Investment in aircraft joint ventures . . . ... ... .. oL

Net cash used in investing activities . . .. .. ............ . ... unn...

Cash flows provided from financing activities:
Proceeds from borrowings, net . ... ... .. ... ... i e e
Reduction in borrowings . . ... ... .. . ... . .
Proceeds from capital lease obligations . . ... ...... ... .. .. .. ... ...
Reduction in capital lease obligations . . . ... ...... . ... .. ... ... ...
Proceeds fromsale of warrants . .. . ....... ... ... ... .. . . ..
Purchase of convertible note hedges. . .. .. .......... ... . ... ... ...
Purchase of treasury stock . . . ... .. ... . . e e e
Stock Option eXercises . . . ... ... .. ... e
Tax benefits from exercise of stock options . . .. ....... . ... ... .. ...

Net cash provided from financing activities. . . ... ... ... ... .. ... ...
Effect of exchange rate changesoncash .. ............................

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents . . . ... ... ... . ... ... ... ...
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year . . ... . ... ... ... .. ... .....

Cash and cash equivalents, endof year . ... .......... ... ... .. ... . ...,

For the Year Ended May 31,

2008

2007

2006

(In thousands)

75,144 § 58,660 §$ 35,163

39952 32,199 29222
13,243 20411 8,433
(4,657)  (4,345) —

—  (5,358) —

— 7,652 —

205 (2927) 3,893
(5948)  (10,952) —
(532) (915) —
12428 (25,160)  (9,324)
(42,339)  (8,567)  (58,297)
(44,689)  (5259)  (12,892)
4413 (62491) (76,156)
(26078) 6473 19,735
19,131 1,903 12,282
(6,152)  (4,696) 10,493
(17,195)  (17.867)  (3,034)
16926  (21,239)  (40,482)
(30,334)  (29,891)  (16,296)
10 51 205

- 6,567 —
23,767 11,612 —
(26,179)  (10,697) —
(85,210)  (38,478) —
877 32,108 6,439
(23,609)  (9,556)  (23,245)
(1,287) (845) 272
(141,965)  (39,129)  (32,625)
267003 29491 155,629
(99,541)  (20,439)  (20,376)
12,880 — —_
(1,058) — —
40,114 —_ _
(69,676) — —
(9,527) - -
6,169 8,576 9,402
4,657 4,345 —
151,021 21,973 144,655
92 (26) (148)
26,074  (38421) 71,400
83317 121,738 50,338
$109391 § 83,317 $121,738

The accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements

are an integral part of these statements.
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AAR CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Description of Business

AAR CORRP is a diversified provider of products and services to the worldwide aviation and defense
industries. Products and services include: aviation supply chain and parts support programs; maintenance,
repair and overhaul of aircraft and landing gear; design and manufacture of specialized mobility and cargo
systems and composite and other high-end precision machined structures; and aircraft sales and leasing,
We serve commercial and governmental aircraft fleet operators, original equipment manufacturers, and
independent service providers around the world, and various domestic and foreign military customers.

Principles of Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its
subsidiaries after elimination of intercompany accounts and transactions. The equity method of accounting
is used for investments in other companies in which we have significant influence; generally this represents
common stock ownership of at least 20% and not more than 50% (see Note 8 for a discussion of aircraft
joint ventures).

Revenue Recognition

Sales and related cost of sales for product sales are recognized upon shipment of the product to the
customer. Our standard terms and conditions provide that title passes to the customer when the product is
shipped to the customer. Sales of certain defense products are recognized upon customer acceptance,
which includes transfer of title. Sales from services and the related cost of services are generally recognized
when customer-owned material is shipped back to the customer. We have adopted this accounting policy
because at the time the customer-owned material is shipped back to the customer, ali services related to
that material are complete as our service agreements generally do not require us to provide services at
customer sites. Furthermore, serviced units are typically shipped to the customer immediately upon
completion of the related services. Sales and related cost of sales for certain long-term manufacturing
contracts, certain large airframe maintenance contracts and certain long-term aircraft component
maintenance agreements are recognized by the percentage of completion method, either based on the
relationship of costs incurred to date to estimated total costs or the units of delivery method, Lease
revenues are recognized as earned. Income from monthly or quarterly rental payments is recorded in the
pertinent period according to the lease agreement. However, for leases that provide variable rents, we
recognize lease income on a straight-line basis. In addition to a monthly lease rate, some engine leases
require an additional rental amount based on the number of hours the engine is used in a particular
month. Lease income associated with these contingent rentals is recorded in the period in which actual
usage is reported to us by the lessee, which is normally the month following the actual usage.

Certain supply chain management programs we provide our customers contain multiple elements or
deliverables, such as program and warehouse management, parts distribution and maintenance and repair
services. We recognize revenue for each element or deliverable that can be identified as a separate unit of
accounting at the time of delivery based upon the relative fair value of the products and services.
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(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Goodwill

Under Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible
Assets,” goodwill and other intangible assets deemed to have indefinite lives are not amortized, but are
subject to annual impairment tests.

The amount reported under the caption “Goodwill and other intangible assets, net” is comprised of
goodwill and intangible assets associated with acquisitions we made, principally since the beginning of
fiscal 1998. Each of the acquisitions involved a single business that now comprises or is included in a single
operating segment. We were not required to allocate goodwill related to specific acquisitions across two or
more segments. For the annual goodwill impairment test, we compare an estimate of the fair value of each
of our reportable segments to its carrying amount. The estimated fair value of each reportable segment
was determined utilizing a valuation technique based on a multiple of earnings.

Goodwill by reportable segment is as follows:

May 31,
2008 2007
Aviation Supply Chain . ...t e e $ 20,133 $20,136
Maintenance, Repair and Overhauwl ... .................. 18,234 14,860
Structures and Systems . ... .. ... . o e e 63,153 29,631

$101,520 $64,627

The increase in goodwill during fiscal 2008 was attributable to the acquisitions discussed in Note 7. At
May 31, 2008 and 2007, intangible assets, other than goodwill, are comprised of customer relationships and
covenants not to compete as follows:

May 31,
2008 2007
Customer relationships . ... ......... ... ... ... cuiian... $28,730 $8,730
Covenants not 10 COMPEte . ... ... .o ir e n i e 1,760 960
Accumulated amortization . ............ .. ... ... ..., (2,291) (50}

$28,199  §9,640

Customer relationships are being amortized over five- to twenty-year periods and the covenants not to
compete are being amortized over a three-year period. We have made a preliminary purchase price
allocation for customer relationships and covenants not to compete for the Summa and Avborne
acquisitions and are in the process of obtaining final valuations for the acquired net assets. The aggregate
amount of amortization expense for intangible assets each of the next five fiscal years is $2,701 in 2009,
$2,464 in 2010, $2,329 in 2011, $2,060 in 2012 and $1,836 in 2013,
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1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Cash and Cash Equivalents

At May 31, 2008 and 2007, cash equivalents of approximately $5,005 and $0, respectively, consist of
investments in certificates of deposit which mature within 90 days. The carrying amount of cash equivalents
approximates fair value at May 31, 2008 and 2007.

Marketable Securities

At May 31, 2008, we have invested $3,044 in securitics which are classified as available for sale and
included in “Deposits, prepaids and other” in the Consolidated Balance Sheet. As of May 31, 2008, the
unrealized gain on investment in available for sale securities was $65, net of tax, and was recorded as a
component of “Other comprehensive income.”

During fiscal 2008 and 2007, we sold investments in securities that were classified as available for sale.
The gains on sale of these investments were $532 and $915 in fiscal 2008 and 2007, respectively, and are
reported in “Interest income and other” on the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Foreign Currency

All balance sheet accounts of foreign subsidiaries transacting business in currencies other than the
U.S. dollar are translated at year-end exchange rates. Revenues and expenses are translated at average
exchange rates during the year. Translation adjustments are excluded from the results of operations and
are recorded in stockholders’ equity as a component of accumulated other comprehensive: loss.

Financial Instruments and Concentrations of Market or Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject us to concentrations of market or credit risk consist
principally of trade receivables. While our trade receivables are diverse and represent a number of entities
and geographic regions, the majority are with the U.S. Department of Defense and its contractors and
entities in the aviation industry. Accounts receivable due from the U.S. Department of Defense were
$24,112 and $22,098 at May 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively. We perform regular evaluations of customer
payment experience, current financial condition and risk analysis. We may require collateral in the form of
security interests in assets, letters of credit, and/or obligation guarantees from financial institutions for
transactions executed on other than normal trade terms.

Mesa is a customer of the Company and in May 2008, warned it may have to file for bankruptcy
protection if it could not resolve a contract dispute with one of its customers. During fiscal 2008,
consolidated sales to Mesa were $73,000, of which $56,000 was in the Aviation Supply Chain segment and
$17,000 in the Maintenance, Repair and Overhaul segment. At May 31, 2008, we have inventory of $4,000
and other long-term assets recorded in equipment on long-term lease of $51,000 supporting the Mesa
supply chain programs and also have trade receivables and other assets associated with Mesa of
approximately $13,000. Mesa is current on their obligations to us and we continue to monitor their
situation.

SFAS No. 107, “Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial Instruments,” requires disclosure of the fair
value of certain financial instruments. Cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, short-term
borrowings and accounts payable are reflected in the consolidated financial statements at fair value
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1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

because of the short-term maturity of these instruments. The carrying value of long-term debt bearing a
variable interest rate approximates fair value. '

Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in time based on relevant market information about
the financial instrument. These estimates are subjective in nature and involve uncertainties and matters of
significant judgment and therefore cannot be determined with precision. Changes in assumptions could
significantly affect the estimates.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or market. Cost is determined by the specific identification,
average cost or first-in, first-out methods. We also purchase aircraft and engines for disassembly to
individual parts and components. Costs are assigned to these individual parts and components utilizing list
prices from original equipment manufacturers and recent sales history.

The following is a summary of inventories:

May 31,
2008 2007
Raw materials and parts .............ccouvuieenenen.n $ 55,183 § 55,702
Work-in-process . ........ ... i 47,576 36,580

Purchased aircraft, parts, engines and components held for sale. 193,851 152,379
$296,610 $244,661

Equipment under Leases

Lease revenue is recognized as earned. The cost of the asset under lease is original purchase price plus
overhaul costs. Depreciation for aircraft is computed on a straight-line method over the estimated service
life of the equipment. The balance sheet classification is generally based on lease term, with fixed-term
leases less than twelve months generally classified as short-term and all others generally classified as
long-term.

Equipment on short-term lease consists of aircraft engines and parts on or available for lease to satisfy
customers’ immediate short-term requirements. The leases are renewable with fixed terms, which generally
vary from one to twelve months. Equipment on long-term lease consists of aircraft and engines on lease
with commercial airlines generally for more than twelve months.

Our aircraft and engine portfolio recorded on our consolidated balance sheet includes eight
narrow-body aircraft and several types of engines. Of the eight aircraft, four were acquired prior to
September 11, 2001. Several engines also were acquired prior to September 11, 2001. Demand and lease
rates for certain of these assets have not returned to pre-September 11, 2001 levels. In accordance with
SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets,” we are required to test
for impairment of these assets whenever certain conditions exist, and previously adjusted the carrying value
for certain of these assets (see Note 13). During the first quarter of fiscal 2007, we recorded an impairment
charge of $2,902 on a wide-body aircraft originally purchased prior to September 11, 2001. The lease and
non-recourse debt on the aircraft were restructured during the quarter, and we made the decision to offer
the aircraft for sale and recorded the impairment charge to reduce the carrying value of the aircraft to
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1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

estimated net realizable value. This aircraft was sold during the third quarter of fiscal 2008. When applying
the provisions of SFAS No. 144 to our aircraft and engine portfolio, we utilize certain assumptions to
estimate future undiscounted cash flows, including current and future lease rates, lease terms, residual
vatues and market conditions and trends impacting future demand. Unfavorable differences between
actual results and expected results could result in future impairments in our aircraft and engine lease
portfolio.

All of the aircraft in our aircraft portfolio are currently on lease. Future rent due to us under
non-cancelable leases during each of the next five fiscal years is $32,896 in 2009, $27,128 in 2010, $22,010 in
2011, $22,089 in 2012 and $16,424 in 2013.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Depreciation is computed on the straight-line method over useful lives of 10-40 vears for buildings
and improvements and 3-10 years for equipment, furniture and fixtures and capitalized software.
Leasehold improvements are amortized over the shorter of the estimated useful life or the term of the
applicable lease.

Repair and maintenance expenditures are expensed as incurred. Upon sale or disposal, cost and
accumulated depreciation are removed from the accounts, and related gains and losses are included in
results of operations.

Leveraged Lease

We are an equity participant in a leveraged lease transaction. The equipment cost in excess of equity
contribution is financed by a third party in the form of secured debt. Under the lease agreement, the third
party has no recourse against us for nonpayment of the obligation. The third-party debt is collateralized by
the lessees’ rental obligation and the leased equipment,

We have ownership rights to the leased asset and are entitled to the tax deduction for depreciation on
the leased asset and for interest on the secured debt financing.
Income taxes

Income taxes are determined in accordance with SFAS No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes”.

Supplemental Information on Cash Flows

Supplemental information on cash flows follows:

For the Year Ended May 31,

2008 2007 2006
Interest paid . . ... ... ..ot $20,024 $13.650 $13,588
Income taxes paid . .. ... ... ... ..o 11,412 1,948 1,303
Income tax refunds and interest received .. ... ... .. 506 1,221 1,137

During fiscal 2008 and 2007, we capitalized $1,372 and $977, respectively, of interest primarily related
to capital projects in our Structures and Systems segment.
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1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

During the third quarter of fiscal 2008, the holders of $16,355 of 2.875% convertible notes redeemed
their notes for 880,000 shares of our common stock. As a result of the redemption, common stock
increased $880 and capital surplus increased $15,284.

In connection with the acquisition of Avborne, we assumed a $25,000 industrial revenue bond secured
by maintenance hangars located at Miami International Airport. The industrial revenue bond matures on
August 1, 2018 and has a variable interest rate. The interest rate at May 31, 2008 was 1.68%.

During the third quarter of fiscal 2006, we acquired $50,645 aggregate principal amount of our
2 875% Convertible Senior Notes due 2024, or approximately 76% of the previously outstanding principal
amount, in exchange for an aggregate 2,724,000 newly issued shares of common stock plus $3,893 in cash,
in privately negotiated transactions exempt from the registration requirements under the Securities Act of
1933, as amended. The number of shares issued was equivalent to the number into which the notes were
convertible under the original terms of the notes. We recorded a $3,893 pre-tax loss on the exchange of the
notes into stock in advance of the call date of the notes; this loss was comprised of interest that the note
holders would otherwise have been entitled to receive as well as an incentive payment for the exchange. As
a result of these transactions, our long-term debt decreased by $50,645 and stockholders’ equity increased
by $46,600.

During fiscal 2008, treasury stock increased $21,122 reflecting the purchase of treasury shares of
$9,527 and the impact from the exercise of stock options of $11,595. During fiscal 2007 and 2006, treasury
stock increased $10,149 and $19,167, respectively, principally reflecting the impact from the exercise of
stock options.

Use of Estimates

We have made estimates and utilized certain assumptions refating to the reporting of assets and
liabilities and the disclosures of contingent liabilities to prepare these consolidated financial statements in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. Actual results could differ
from those estimates.

New Accounting Standards

In September 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157 (SFAS 157) “Fair Value Measurements.”
SFAS 157 establishes a framework for measuring fair value in generally accepted accounting principles,
and expands disclosures about fair value measurements. SFAS 157 is effective for fiscal years beginning
after November 15, 2007 for financial assets and liabilities, as well as for any other assets that are carried at
fair value on a recurring basis in financial statements. In November 2007, the FASB provided a one year
deferral of the implementation of SFAS 157 for other non-financial assets and liabilities. We continue 10
review the impact of SFAS 157 on our financial statements, but do not expect a material impact on our
results of operations or financial condition.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159 (SFAS 159), “The Fair Value Option for Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities—Including an Amendment to FASB Statement No. 115.” SFAS 159 allows
companies, at specified election dates, the option to measure certain financial assets and liabilities at fair
value. The election, which is applied on an instrument by instrument basis, is typically irrevocable once
made. Subsequent unrealized gains and losses on items for which the fair value option has been elected are
to be reported in earnings. SFAS 159 is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007, We
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1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

continue to review the impact of SFAS 159 on our financial statements, but do not expect a material impact
on our results of operations or financial condition.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 160 (SFAS 160), “Noncontrolling Interests in
Consolidated Financial Statements—an Amendment of ARB 51.” This statement amends ARB 51 to
establish accounting and reporting standards for the noncontrolling interest (minority interest) in a
subsidiary and for the deconsolidation of a subsidiary. Upon its adoption, effective for us as of June 1,
2009, noncontrolling interests will be classified as equity in the Company’s financial statements and income
and comprehensive income attributed to the noncontrolling interest will be included in the Company’s
income and comprehensive income. The provisions of this standard must be applied retrospectively upon
adoption. We are currently evaluating the impact of adopting SFAS 160 on our results of operations and
financial position.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141 (revised 2007) (SFAS 141(R})), “Business
Combinations.” SFAS 141(R) establishes principles and requirements for how an acquirer in a business
combination recognizes and measures the assets acguired, liabilities assumed, and any noncontrolling
interest in the acquiree. The provisions of SFAS 141(R) are effective for our business combinations
occurring on or after June 1, 2009.

In March 2008, the FASB issued SFAS No. 161 (SFAS 161), “Disclosures about Derivative
Instruments and Hedging Activities.” SFAS 161 amends and expands the disclosure requirements of SFAS
No. 133, *Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,” and is effective for fiscal years
beginning after November 15, 2008. We do not expect the adoption of SFAS 161 will have a material
impact on our results of operations or financial condition.

In May 2008, the FASB issued Staff Position FSP APB 14-1 (FSP APB 14-1), “Accounting for
Convertible Debt Instruments That May Be Settied in Cash upon Conversion (Including Partial Cash
Settlement).” FSP APB 14-1 requires companies that have issued convertible debt that may be settled
wholly or partly in cash when converted, to account for the debt and equity components separately. The
value assigned to the bond liability is the estimated value of a similar bond without the conversion feature
as of the issuance date. The difference between the proceeds for the convertible debt and the amount
reflected as a bond liability is recorded as additional paid-in-capital. Interest expense is recorded using the
issuer’s comparable debt rate. FSP APB 14-1 will be effective for us beginning June 1, 2009 (fiscal 2010)
and will require retrospective application. We continue to review the impact of FSP APB 14-1 on our
financial statements, however, we are currently estimating, based on the outstanding convertible notes at
May 31, 2008, the implementation of FSP APB 14-1 will result in a reduction of our convertible notes of
approximately $95,000, an increase in capital surplus of approximately $62,000 and an increase in deferred
taxes of approximately $33,000. In addition, we expect the implementation of FSP APB 14-1 will reduce
our diluted earnings per share by $0.12 to $0.15 per share in fiscal 2010.

Reclassification

Certain amounts in the prior years’ consolidated financial statements have been reclassified to
conform to the current year's presentation.
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2. Financing Arrangements
Revolving Credit Facility

On August 31, 2007, we amended our credit agreement dated August 31, 2006 (the “Credit
Agreement”) with various financial institutions, as lenders, and LaSalle Bank National Association, as
administrative agent for the lenders (the ‘Amendment”). The Amendment increased our unsecured
revolving credit amount to $250,000 from $140,000. Under certain circumstances, we may request an
increase to the revolving commitment by an aggregate amount of up to $75,000, not to exceed $325,000 in
total. The Amendment extended the term of our Credit Agreement from August 31, 2010 to August 31,
2011. The Amendment also modified the borrowing rate of the Credit Agreement and borrowings now
bear interest at the London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) plus 100 to 225 basis points based on
certain financial measurements. In March 2008, a second amendment to the Credit Agreement modified
the borrowing rate to LIBOR plus 100 to 237.5 basis points based on certain financial measurements.
There were no borrowings outstanding under this facility at May 31, 2008.

Short-term borrowing activity under our revolving credit facilities during fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006
was as follows:

For the Year Ended May 31,
2008 2007 2006

Maximum amount borrowed . ... ... i $173.000 $ 0 $25,000
Average daily borrowings . . ..., .. ...l 35,077 ¢ 1,216
Average interest rate during the year . .............. 6.12% — 6.76%
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2. Financing Arrangements (Continued)

A summary of our recourse and non-recourse long-term debt is as follows:

Recourse debt

Notes payable due December 15, 2007 with interest at 6.875% payable
semi-annually on June 15 and December 15. ... ... ... .. ... ... .....
Notes payable due May 15, 2008 with interest at 7.98% payable semi-annually on
June 1 and December | ... .. ... .. ... ...
Notes payable due May 15, 2011 with interest at 8.39% payable semi-annually on
June 1and December 1 ... ... .. e
Mortgage loan (secured by Wood Dale, 1llinois facility) due August 1, 2015 with
interest at 50192 .. . .. e e
Convertible notes payable due March 1, 2014 with interest at 1.625% payable
semi-annually on March 1 and September 1............... .. ...... ...
Convertible notes payable due March 1, 2016 with interest at 2.25% payable
semi-annually on March 1 and September 1............. ... ... ... ...
Convertible notes payable due February 1, 2024 with interest at 2.875% payable
semi-annually on February 1 and August 1... ... . ...................
Convertible notes payable due February 1, 2026 with interest at 1.75% payable
semi-annually on February  and August 1......... ... ... . ... .. ...,
Industrial revenue bonds (secured by trust indenture on property, plant and
equipment) due December 1, 2010 and August 1, 2018 with floating interest
rate,payable monthly . . ... ... L oo L

Total recourse debt . . .. ... e e e e
Current maturities of recourse debt . . . ... . ... . .. e

Long-termrecourse debt . ... ... ... .. ...

Non-recourse debt

Non-recourse note payable due December 1, 2007 with interest at 6.00% . ... ..
Non-recourse note payable due October 31, 2008 with interest at 5.66% .. ... ..
Non-recourse note payable due March 31, 2009 with interest at 6.18% ........
Non-recourse note payable due July 19, 2012 with interest at 7.22% .. .. .. .. ..
Non-recourse note payable due April 3, 2015 with interest at 838% ..........

Total non-recourse debt . .. ... . i e e e e e e
Current maturities of non-recourse debt . . .. ... ... .. . . . oo ...

Long-term non-recourse debt . ... ... ... .. . L e
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May 31,
2008 2007

$  — $31,166
— 20,000
42,000 55,000
1,000 11,000
137,500 —
112,500 —
— 16355

150,000 150,000

25,508 708

478,508 284,229
(200)  (51,366)

$478,308 $232,863

§  — $22252
7,381 —
10,048 —
15,725 15,000
5,748 6,375

30402 43,627
(202127)  (22,879)

$ 19,190 $ 20,748




AAR CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

2. Financing Arrangements (Continued)
Recourse debt

During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2008, we retired $13,000 of our 8.39% notes due May 15, 2011 for
$12,578. The gain from this transaction was $422 and is recorded in gain (loss) from extinguishment of debt
on the consolidated statements of operations.

During the third quarter of fiscal 2008, the holders of $16,355 of 2.875% convertible notes redeemed
their notes for 880,000 shares of our common stock. As a result of the redemption, common stock
increased $880 and capital surplus increased $15,284.

During February 2008, we completed the sale of $250,000 of convertible notes, consisting of $137,500
aggregate principal amount of 1.625% convertible senior notes due 2014 and $112,500 aggregate principal
amount of 2.25% convertible senior notes due 2016 (together, the “Notes”) in a private offering to
qualified institutional buyers pursuant to Rule 144A under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended. Interest
under the Notes is payable semiannually on March 1 and September 1, beginning September 1, 2008.

Holders may convert their Notes based on a conversion rate of 28.1116 shares of our common stock
per $1,000 principal amount of Notes, which is equivalent to an initial conversion price of $35.57 per share,
only under the following circumstances: (i) during any calendar quarter beginning after March 31, 2008
{and only during such calendar quarter) if, as of the last day of the preceding calendar quarter, the closing
price of our common stock for at least 20 trading days in a period of 30 consecutive trading days ending on
the last trading day of such preceding calendar quarter is more than 130% of the applicable conversion
price per share of common stock on the last day of such preceding calendar quarter; (i) during the five
business day period after any five consecutive trading day period in which the trading price per $1,000
principal amount of notes of the applicable series for each day of that period was less than 98% of the
product of the closing price of our common stock and the then applicable conversion rate; (i) if a
designated event or similar change of control transaction occurs; (iv) upon specified corporate
transactions; or (v) beginning on February 1, 2014, in the case of the 2014 notes, or February 1, 2016, in the
case of the 2016 notes, and ending at the close of business on the business day immediately preceding the
applicable maturity date.

Upon conversion, a holder of the Notes will receive, in licu of common stock, an amount in cash equal
to the lesser of (i) $1,000 and (ii) the conversion value of a number of shares of our common stock equal Lo
the conversion rate. If the conversion value exceeds the principal amount, we will also deliver at our
election, cash or common stock or a combination thereof having a value equal to such excess amount.

The Notes are senior, unsecured obligations and rank equal in right of payment with all of our existing
and future unsecured and unsubordinated expenses. Costs associated with this transaction of
approximately $6,028 are being amortized on a pro-rata basis over a six- and eight-year period.

In connection with the issuance of the Notes, we entered into convertible note hedge transactions,
(note hedges) with respect to our common stock with Merrill Lynch Financial Markets, Inc. (hedge
provider). The note hedges are exercisable solely in connection with any conversion of the Notes and
provide for us to receive shares of our common stock from the hedge provider equal to the number of
shares issuable to the holders of the Notes upon conversion. We paid $69,676 for the note hedges.

In addition, we entered into separate warrant transactions with Merrilt Lynch Financial Markets, Inc.
whereby we issued warrants to purchase 7,028,000 shares of our common stock at an exercise price of
$48.83 per share. We received $40,114 from the sale of these warrants. The convertible note hedges and
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2. Financing Arrangements (Continued)

warrant transactions are intended to reduce potential dilution to our common stock upon future
conversion of the Notes and generally have the effect of increasing the conversion price of the Notes to
approximately $48.83 per share.

Net proceeds from the Notes transaction after paying expenses were approximately $214,410 and were
used 1o repay the balance outstanding under our unsecured revolving credit facility, to pay for the net cost
of the note hedges and warrant transactions and for general corporate purposes.

On February 1, 2006, we completed the sale of $150,000 principal amount of convertible senior notes.
The notes are due on February 1, 2026 unless earlier redeemed, repurchased or converted, and bear
interest at 1.75% payable semiannually on February 1 and August 1. Costs associated with this transaction
of approximately $4,875 are being amortized over a seven-year period. Net proceeds from this transaction
were $145,125 and were used in part to repurchase $25,000 of accounts receivable which had been sold
under our former accounts receivable securitization facility, to repay $25,000 outstanding under our
secured revolving credit facility and to purchase for $11,232 aviation equipment which was subject to an
operating lease.

A holder may convert the notes into shares of common stock based on a conversion rate of
33.9789 shares per $1,000 principal amount of notes, which is equivalent to an initial conversion price of
approximately $29.43 per share, under the following circumstances: (i) during any calendar quarter
beginning after March 31, 2006 (and only during such calendar quarter), if, as of the last day of the
preceding calendar quarter, the closing price of our common stock for at least 20 trading days in a period
of 30 consecutive trading days ending on the last trading day of such preceding calendar quarter is more
than 120% of the applicable conversion price per share of common stock on the last day of such preceding
calendar quarter; (ii) during the five business day period after any five consecutive trading day period in
which the “trading price” per $1,000 principal amount of notes for each day of that period was less than
98% of the product of the closing price of our common stock and the then applicable conversion rate;
(iii) upon a redemption notice; (iv) if a designated event or similar change of control transaction occurs;
{(v) upon specified corporate transactions; or (vi) during the ten trading day period ending at the close of
business on the business day immediately preceding the stated maturity date on the notes. Upon
conversion, we will have the right to deliver, in lieu of shares of our common stock, cash or a combination
of cash and shares of common stock, at cur option, in an amount per note equal to the applicable
conversion rate multiplied by the applicable stock price.

We may redeem for cash all or a portion of the notes at any time on or after February 6, 2013 at
specified redemption prices. Holders of the notes have the right to require us to purchase for cash all or
any portion of the notes on February 1, 2013, 2016 and 2021 at a price equal to 100% of the principal
amount of the notes plus accrued interest and unpaid interest, if any, to the purchase date. The notes are
senior, unsecured obligations and rank equal in right of payment with all other unsecured and
vnsubordinated indebtedness.

The mortgage loan due August 1, 2015 is secured by our Wood Dale, Illinois facility. At May 31, 2008,
the net book value of our Wood Dale, 1llinois facility is $14,427.

In connection with the acquisition of Avborne, we assumed a $25,000 industrial revenue bond secured
by maintenance hangars located at Miami International Airport. The industrial revenue bond matures on
August 1, 2018 and has a variable interest rate. The interest rate at May 31, 2008 was 1.68%.
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2. Financing Arrangements (Continued)

We are subject to a number of covenants under our financing arrangements, including restrictions
which relate to the payment of cash dividends, maintenance of minimum net working capital and tangible
net worth levels, fixed charge coverage ratio, sales of assets, additional financing, purchase of our shares
and other matters. We are in compliance with all financial covenants under our financing arrangements.
The aggregate amount of long-term recourse debt maturing during each of the next five fiscal years is $200
in 2009, $200 in 2010, $42,108 in 2011, $0 in 2012 and $0 in 2013. Our long-term recourse debt was
estimated to have a fair value of approximately $417,000 at May 31, 2008. The fair valuc was determined
using available market information.

Non-recourse debt

During the third quarter of fiscal 2008, we retired non-recourse debt that was secured by an aircraft
which was sold during the third quarter of fiscal 2008. The outstanding principal amount for this
non-recourse debt was $19,748 and was retired for $20,375. The net loss from this transaction was $627 and
is recorded in gain (loss) on extinguishment of debt on the consolidated statement of operations

On May 31, 2008, our total non-recourse debt balance is $39,402 and is secured by four aircraft with a
net book value of $56,949. The aggregate amount of long-term non-recousse debt maturing during each of
the next five fiscal years is $20,212 in 2009, $2,462 in 2010, $2,658 in 2011, $2,860 in 2012 and $9,274 in
2013.

3. Stock-Based Compensation

We provide stock-based awards under the AAR CORP. Stock Benefit Plan (“Stock Benefit Plan™)
which has been approved by our stockholders. Under this plan, we are authorized to issue stock options to
employees and non-employee directors that allow the grant recipients to purchase shares of common stock
at a price not less than the fair market value of the common stock on the date of grant. Generally, stock
options awarded under the plan expire ten years from the date of grant and are exercisable in either four
or five equal annual increments commencing one year after the date of grant. We issue new common stock
upon the exercise of stock options. In addition to stock options, the Stock Benefit Plan also provides for
the issuance of restricted stock awards and performance-based restricted stock awards, as well as for the
granting of stock appreciation units; however, to date, no stock appreciation units have been granted.

Restricted stock grants are designed, among other things, to align employee interests with the interests
of stockholders and to encourage the recipient to build a career with the Company. Restricted stock
typically vests over periods of three to ten years from date of grant. Restricted stock grants may be
performance-based with vesting to occur over periods of one to ten years after the grant is earned. All
restricted stock carries full dividend and voting rights, regardless of whether it has vested.

Typically, stock options and restricted stock are subject to forfeiture prior to vesting if the employee
terminates employment for any reason other than death, retirement or disability or if we terminate
employment for cause. A total of 5,237,000 shares have been granted under the Stock Benefit Plan since its
inception, and as of May 31, 2008, awards representing 3,696,000 shares were available for future grant
under the Stock Benefit Plan.
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Effective June 1, 2006, we adopted SFAS No. 123(R), “Share-based Payment,” vsing the modified
prospective method of transition. Under SFAS No. 123(R), compensation expense is recognized for stock
option grants made after May 31, 2006 and for the unvested portion of outstanding stock options that were
granted prior to the adoption of SFAS No. 123(R). Compensation cost is measured based on the grant date
fair value of the award and recognized on a straight line basis over the vesting period.

Prior to the adoption of SFAS No. 123(R), we accounted for stock-based compensation in accordance
with Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25 (“APB 25”), “Accounting for Stock Issued to
Employees,” and SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation”. Under APB 25, no
compensation expense was recognized for stock option grants, and accordingly share-based compensation
related to stock options granted prior to June 1, 2006 was included as pro forma disclosure in the
consolidated financial statements.

Stock Options

On April 11, 2006, our Board of Directors approved the acceleration of the vesting of all unvested
stock options. As a result of this action, stock options representing approximately 679,000 shares that were
scheduled to vest in fiscal 2007, 2008 and 2009 became fully exercisable effective May 1, 2006. The
accelerated vesting enabled us to reduce the amount of compensation expense that would otherwise be
required to be recognized in our consolidated statements of operations with respect to these options upon
the adoption of SFAS No. 123(R). The aggregate cxpense that was climinated as a result of the
acceleration was approximately $1,800. The acceleration resulted in a non-cash, one-time pre-tax stock
compensation expense of $362 in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2006.

During fiscal 2008 and fiscal 2007, we granted stock options representing 88,000 shares and
100,000 shares, respectively. No stock options were granted during fiscal 2006 other than reload options,
which resulted from the exercise of original stock options granted in prior years. Effective May 1, 2006, the
reload provision was eliminated from substantially all outstanding stock option arrangements.

The weighted average fair value of stock options granted during fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006 was $13.46,
$11.93 and $3.71, respectively. The fair value of each stock option grant was estimated on the date of grant
using the Black-Scholes option pricing model with the following assumptions:

Stock Options Granted In

Fiscal Year
2008 2007 2006
Risk-free interestrate . . ......................... 49% 50% 43%
Expected volatility of common stock. . ............... 43.1% 358.7% 34.1%
Dividend yield ............ ... ... ... ... ... ..... 0.0% 00% 0.0%
Expected option term inyears . ......... ... ... ... .. 4.0 4.0 1.0

The risk-free interest rate is based on the U.S. Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of grant. The
expected volatility is based on historical volatility of our common stock and the expected option term
represents the period of time that the stock options granted are expected to be outstanding based on
historical exercise trends. The dividend yield represents our anticipated cash dividends over the expected
option term.
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3. Stock-Based Compensation (Continued)

The following table illustrates the effect on net income and earnings per share if we had applied the
fair value recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123 to our stock option plan for the year ended May 31,

2006.

Net income as reported

Add: Stock-based

reporied, net of tax

compensation expense included in net income as

Deduct: Total stock-based compensation expense determined under

fair value method for all awards, net of tax

Pro forma net income
Earnings per share—basic:

Earnings per share—diluted:

As reported
Pro forma
As reported
Pro forma

For the Year Ended
May 31, 2006

$35,163

A summary of changes in stock option activity for the three years ended May 31, 2008 follows (shares

in thousands):

QOutstanding at beginning of year

Granted
Exercised
Cancelled

QOutstanding at end of year

Options exercisable at end

2008 2007 2006
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average
Exercise Exercise Exercise
Shares Price Shares Price Shares Price
.............. 2,135 $1830 3,080 $16.88 4,607 $15.17
................... 88 $33.63 100 $24.08 364 $22.28
................... (773) $18.28 (1,021) $17.72 (1,818) $13.70
................... (25) $26.55  (24) $17.47  (73) $15.19
.................. 1,425 $21.53 2,135 $18.30 3,080 $16.88
ofyear ............. 1,271  $1994 2,038 $18.03 3,080 $16.88

|

The total fair value of stock options that vested during fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006 was $227, $0 and
$1,628, respectively. The total intrinsic value of stock options exercised during fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006
was $12,627, $13,582 and $17,148, respectively. The aggregate intrinsic value of options outstanding as of
May 31, 2008 was $4,080. The tax benefit realized from stock options exercised during fiscal 2008 and 2007
was $4,657 and $4,345, respectively. As of May 31, 2008, we had $1,672 of unrecognized compensation
expense related to stock options that will be amortized over an average period of five years.
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The following table provides additional information regarding stock options outstanding as of May 31,
2008 (shares in thousands):

Options Ouitstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted-

Number Average Weighted- Number Weighted-

Outstanding Remaining Average Exercisable Average

Option Exercise as of Contractual Exercise as of Exercise

Price Range 5/31/08 Life in Years Price 5/31/08 Price

$ 3.20-$13.00 218 49 $ 7.72 218 172
$13.01-%$18.50 462 3.2 $16.15 462 $16.15
$18.51-$24.50 583 54 $23.06 508 $22.90
$24.51-$34.50 162 69 $30.22 83 $26.14
1,425 4.8 $21.53 1,271 $19.94

Restricted Stock

We provide executives and other key employees an opportunity to be awarded performance-based
restricted stock. The award is contingent upon the achievement of certain performance objectives,
including net income and return on capital, or the Company’s stock price achieving a certain level over a
period of time. After the shares are granted, the restrictions are released over a three to seven year period.
During fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006, we granted 35,000, 459,000 and 438,000 restricted shares, respectively,
under this program.

In addition to the performance-based restricted stock awards, we also granted a total of 20,000
restricted shares to members of the Board of Directors during fiscal 2008. These shares vest over a three-
year period.

The fair value of restricted shares is the market value of our common stock on the date of grant.
Amortization expense related to all restricted shares during fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006 was $5,943, $3,458
and $3,690 respectively.

Restricted share activity during the fiscal year ended May 31, 2008 is as follows (shares in thousands):

Weighted Average

Number of Fair Vailue on

Shares Grant Date
Nonvested at May 31,2007 .. .................... 1,067 $23.16
Granted . .. .. e e 35 $24.51
Vested ... . e (100} $11.56
Forfeited .. .......c. i (82) $25.00
Nonvested at May 31,2008 .. .................... 940 $24.44

As of May 31, 2006, unearned compensation related to restricted shares was included in unearned
restricted stock awards, a separate component oOf stockholders’ equity. Upon the adoption of SFAS
No. 123(R), the balance was reclassified to capital surplus. As of May 31, 2008, we had $11,970 of
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unearned compensation related to restricted shares that will be amortized to expense over a weighted
average period of 2.2 years.

Shareholders’ Rights Plan

Pursuant to a shareholder rights plan adopted in 2007, each outstanding share of our common stock
carries with it a Right to purchase one share at a price of $140 per share. The Rights become exercisable
(and separate from the shares) when certain specified events occur, including the acquisition of 15% or
more of the common stock by a person or group {(an “Acquiring Person”) or the commencement of a
tender or exchange offer for 15% or more of the common stock.

In the event that an Acquiring Person acquires 15% or more of the common stock, or if we are the
surviving corporation in a merger involving an Acquiring Person or if the Acquiring Person engages in
certain types of self-dealing transactions, each Right entitles the holder to purchase for $140 per share (or
the then-current exercise price), shares of our common stock having a market value of $280 (or two times
the exercise price), subject to certain exceptions. Similarly, if we are acquired in a merger or other business
combination or 50% or more of our assets or earning power is sold, each Right entitles the holder to
purchase at the then-current exercise price that number of shares of common stock of the surviving
corporation having a market value of two times the exercise price. The Rights do not entitle the holder
thereof to vote or to receive dividends. The Rights will expire on August 6, 2017, and may be redeemed by
us for $.01 per Right under certain circumstances. The 2007 rights plan replaced a shareholder rights plan
that expired on August 6, 2007.

On June 20, 2006 our Beard of Directors authorized us to purchase up to 1,500,000 shares of our
commen stock on the market. This action superseded our previous stock repurchase plan which had
remaining autharization to purchase 1,255,000 shares. During fiscal 2008, we purchased 321,700 shares of
our common stock on the open market at an average price of $29.61.
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4. Income Taxes

Our pre-tax income was substantially from domestic activities. The provision for income taxes on
continuing operations includes the following components:

For the Year Ended May 31,

2008 2007 2006
Current: :
Federal ........ 0 e $25900 $ 6,863 §$ 1,355
1 721 1,200 700 900
27,100 7,563 2,255
Deferred . . .o oot e e 13,243 20,411 8,433

$40,343  $27,974 $10,688

The deferred tax provision results primarily from differences between financial reporting and taxable
income arising from inventory and depreciation.

Income tax payable at May 31, 2008 and 2007 was $14,523 and $2,101, respectively, and is included in
accrued liabilities on the consolidated balance sheet.

The provision for income taxes on continuing operations differs from the amount computed by
applying the U.S. federal statutory income tax rate of 35% for fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006 to income before
taxes, for the following reasons:

For the Year Ended May 31,

2008 2007 2006

Provision for income taxes at the federal statutory rate  $40,631 $30,597 $16,279

Tax benefit on exempt earnings from export sales . . . —  (2916) (5,806)

Tax benefits on domestic production activities . . . .. (1,558) (167) —
State income taxes, net of federal benefit and

refunds . ........ .. .. ... . i, 770 455 585

Other ....... . i i 500 5 (370)

Provision for income taxes on continuing operations .. $40,343  $27,974  $10,688

In October of 2004, the American Jobs Creation Act of 2004 (the “Act’) was signed into law and
included a number of Federal income tax reforms, including the phase-out of tax benefits on earnings from
export sales,
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Deferred tax liabilities and assets result primarily from the differences in the timing of the recognition
of transactions for financial reporting and income tax purposes and consist of the following components:

May 31,
2008 2007

Deferred tax assets-current attributable to:

INVENTOIY COSES « « o\ v it et e e e i e e i aaus $ 15973 § 24,162

Employee benefits . ............. ... ... ... . ., (1,051) (878)

Allowance for doubtful accounts . . ................... 2,043 1,293

Advanced billings and other ........................ 1,338 936

Total deferred tax assets-current . ...................- $ 18,303 § 25,513
Deferred tax assets-noncurrent attributable to:

Postretirement benefits . . . ... ... .. . ... .. $ 10,768 § 8,366

Alternative minimum tax carryforwards, NOL carryforwards

and foreign tax credit carryforwards . ... ...... ... .. .. — 1,063

Bondhedge ........... . i 24,311 —_

Total deferred tax assets-noncurrent . . ... ... ovev e .. $35079 § 9429

Total deferred tax assets .. .........c.vveunennernnn.. $ 53,382 § 34,942
Deferred tax liabilities attributable to;

Depreciation . .. ... v e $(49,609) $(43,031)

Leveraged leases ... ... .. i i (5813) (6,518)

Intangible assets . . .. ...... ... . i e (7,633) —

Unrealized gain on available for sale securities. . ... ... ... (35) —

Total deferred tax liabilities . . ... ... .. ... ... .. $(63,090) $(49,549)
Net deferred tax liabilities ........................... $ (9,708) $(14,607)

As of May 31, 2008, we have determined that the realization of our deferred tax assets is more likely
than not, and that a valuation allowance is not required based upon our history of operating earnings, the
nature of certain of our deferred tax assets, our expectations for continued future earnings and the
scheduled reversal of deferred tax liabilities, primarily related to depreciation.

5. Earnings Per Share

The computation of basic earnings per share is based on the weighted average number of common
shares outstanding during each period. The computation of diluted earnings per share is based on the
weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the period plus, when their effect is
dilutive, incremental shares consisting of shares subject to stock options, shares issuable upon vesting of
restricted stock awards and shares to be issued upon conversion of convertible debt.

Under the provisions of Emerging Issues Task Force Issue No. 04-08, “The Effect of Contingently
Convertible Instruments on Diluted Earnings per Share” (“EITF No. 04-08"), we are required to use the
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5. Earnings Per Share (Continued)

“if converted” method set forth in SFAS No. 128, “Earnings Per Share,” in calculating the diluted earnings
per share effect of the assumed conversion of our contingently convertible debt issued in fiscal 2006
because the principal for that issuance can be settled in stock, cash or a combination thereof. Under the “if
converted” method, the after-tax effect of interest expense related to the convertible securities is added
back to net income, and the convertible debt is assumed to have been converted into common shares at the
beginning of the period.

The following table provides a reconciliation of the computations of basic and diluted earnings per
share information for each of the years in the three-year period ended May 31, 2008 (shares in thousands).

For the Year Ended May 31,

2008 2007 2006
Income from continuing operations . ............. $75,745  $59,447 $35,823
Loss from discontinued operations, net of tax .. ... .. (601) (787) (660)
Netincome . .. ..o e $75,144 358,660 $35,163
Basic shares:
Weighted average common shares outstanding . . . . . 37,194 36,389 33,530
Earnings per share—basic:
Earnings from continuing operations . . . ......... $ 204 § 163 $ 107
Loss from discontinued operations, net of tax .. ... (0.02)  (0.02) (0.02)
Earnings per share—basic.................... $§ 202 § 161 $ 105
NetinCome . .. ... i i i $75,144 358,660 $35,163
Add: After-tax interest on convertible debt .. .. ... .. 1,866 1,965 1,461
Net income for diluted EPS calculation. . ... ..... .. $77,010 $60,625 $36,624
Diluted shares:
Weighted average common shares outstanding . . . . . 37,194 36,389 33,530
Additional shares from the assumed exercise of
Stock OpHONS . .. .. .. .. i 332 445 487
Additional shares from the assumed vesting of
restricted stock ... ... ... L Lo 523 499 473
Additional shares from the assumed conversion of
convertible debt . .. ....... ... ... ......... 5,696 5,976 4,362
Weighted average common shares outstanding—
diluted . . . ... .. 43,745 43309 38,852
Earnings per share—diluted:
Earnings from continuing operations . . ... ....... $ 177 § 142 § 096
Loss from discontinued operations, net of tax ... .. (0.01) (0.02) (0.02)
Earnings per share—diluted . ................. $ 176 § 140 § 094

At May 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively, options to purchase 78,000, 31,000 and 1,200,000 shares
of common stock were outstanding, but were not included in the computation of diluted earnings per
share, because the exercise price of these options was greater than the average market price of the
common shares.
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6. Employee Benefit Plans

We have defined contribution and defined benefit plans covering substantially all full-time domestic
employees and certain employees in The Netherlands.

Defined Benefit Plans

Prior to January 1, 2000, the pension plan for domestic salaried and non-union hourly employees had
a benefit formula based primarily on years of service and compensation. Effective January 1, 2000, we
converted our defined benefit plan for substantially all domestic salaried and certain hourly employees to a
cash balance pension plan. Under the cash balance pension plan, the retirement benefit is expressed as a
dollar amount in an account that grows with annual pay-based credits and interest on the account balance.
The interest crediting rate under our cash balance plan is determined quarterly and is equal to 100% of the
average 30-year treasury rate for the second month preceding the applicable quarter published by the
Internal Revenue Service. The average interest crediting rate under our cash balance plan for the fiscal
year ended May 31, 2008 was 4.90%. Effective June 1, 20035, the existing cash balance plan was frozen and
the annual pay-based credits were discontinued. Also effective June 1, 2005, the defined contribution plan
was modified to include increased employer contributions and an enhanced profit sharing formula.
Defined pension benefits for certain union hourly employees are based primarily on a fixed amount per
year of service.

Certain foreign operations of domestic subsidiaries also have a defined pension plan. Benefit formulas
are based generally on years of service and compensation. It is the policy of these subsidiaries to fund at
least the minimum amounts required by local laws and regulations.

We provide eligible outside directors with benefits upon retirement on or after age 65 provided they
have completed at least five years of service as a director. Benefits are paid quarterly in cash equal to 25%
of the annual retainer fee payable to active outside directors. Payment of benefits commence upon
retirement and continues for a period equal to the total number of years of the retired director’s service up
to a maximum of ten years, or death, whichever occurs first. In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2001, we
terminated the plan for any new members of the Board of Directors elected after May 31, 2001.

We also provide supplemental pension benefits for certain executives and key employees to
supplement benefits provided by the cash balance plan.

Effective May 31, 2007, we adopted the provisions of SFAS No. 158, “Employers’ Accounting for
Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans”. SFAS No. 158 requires employers to recognize
the overfunded or underfunded status of a defined benefit pension or other postretirement plan as an asset
or liability in its statement of financial position, recognize changes in that funded status in the year in
which the changes occur through comprehensive income and measure a plan’s assets and its obligations
that determine its funded status as of the end of the employer’s fiscal year. We have historically measured
the plan assets and liabilities as of our balance sheet date.
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6. Employee Benefit Plans (Continued)
Obligations and Funded Status

The following table sets forth the changes in projected benefit obligations and plan assets for all of our
pension plans:

May 31,
2008 2007
Change in benefit obligation:
Benefit obligation at beginning of year . . ................ $89,447 $84,427
Service CoSt .. ... ... i 1,546 1,322
Tnterest CoSt . . ..o it e e 5,066 5,058
Plan participants’ contributions .. ..................... 380 271
Amendments . ........ . . ... e 273 —
Netactuarial gain . ... ... .. .. .. i it (2,991) (436)
Benefitspaid ........ .. ... .. . . e (5,292) (5,835)
Translation . - .. .. e e 3,711 4,640
Benefit obligation atend of year . . . ......... ... .. .. ..., $92,140  $89,447
Change in plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year .. ........... $86,045 $75,121
Actual return on plan assets . .............. .. .. .... .. (3,617 8471
Employer contributions . ... ... ... .. . o i 3,028 2,947
Plan participants’ contributions . ............. . ........ 380 27N
Benefits paid ......... .. ... i (5,292) (5,835)
Translation . . ... ... . e 4,049 5,070
Fair value of plan assetsatend of year ........... ... ..... $85,193  $86,045
Funded status atend ofyear . ......................... $(6,947) $(3,402)

Amounts recognized in the consolidated balance sheets consisted of the following:

May 31,
2008 2007
L ) L L $ 1262 $3,456
Accrued Tabilities . . . ... ..ottt e (1,311)  (2,450)
Other liabilities and deferred income . .................... (6,898)  (4,408)

$(6,947) $(3,402)
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Amounts recognized in accumulated comprehensive loss, net of tax consisted of the following:

May 31,
2008 2007
Actuarial JoSS . .. ot e e e e e $18,159 $13,683
Prior SEIVICE COSE . . v ot it it et ettt it e e e 520 571
Total . L e e e e e e e e e $18,679 §14,254

Prior to the adoption of SFAS No. 158, a minimum pension liability adjustment was required when the
actuarial present value of accumulated plan benefits exceeded plan assets and accrued pension liabilities.
During fiscal 2007, we reduced the minimum pension liability by $3,104, and $1,921, net of tax, was
reported as a component of comprehensive income.

Information for pension plans with an accumulated benefit obligation in excess of plan assets was as
follows:

May 31,
2008 2007
Projected benefit obligation. .. ............. ... ... .. $63,838  $65,027
Accumulated benefit obligation ... ....... ... ... o L 63,109 64,381
Fair value of plan assets . . ........ ... . iy 55,629 58,170

The accumulated benefit obligation for all pension plans was $86,776 and $82,820 as of May 31, 2008
and 2007, respectively.

Net Periodic Benefit Cost
Pension expense charged to results of operations includes the following components:

For the Year Ended May 31,

2008 2007 2006
SEIVICE COSE vt v et ettt et ettt et te e emeee s $1546 $1,322 81,567
INterest COSt . . vt vt e e et e re e e e e 5,066 5,058 4,717
Expected return on plan assets ... ............... (6,338) (6,029) (5,764)
Amortization of prior service cost .. ...... .. ... ... 116 109 112
Recognized net actuarial loss. . .................. 684 633 1,052
Curtailment . .... ... i, 184 — —
Settlement charge . .. ......... ... . . .. 181 201 156

$1,439 §$ 1,294 § 1,840
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6. Employee Benefit Plans (Continued)
Assumptions

The assumptions used in accounting for the Company’s plans are estimates of factors including,
among other things, the amount and timing of future benefit payments. The following table presents the
key assumptions used in the measurement of the Company’s benefit obligations:

o May3l,
2008 2007
Domestic plans:
Discountrate . ........... it iiiiiii i 6.45% 6.05%
Rate of compensation increase ......................... 350 3.50
May 31,
008 2007
Non-domestic plans:
Discount rate ... ... ... 6.10% 5.10%
Rate of compensation increase ......................... 3.00 3.00

A summary of the weighted average assumptions used to determine net periodic pension expense is as
follows:

For the Year Ended May 31,
2008 2007 2006

Domestic plans:

Discountrate . ............. .. ..o uiinuiin. ., 6.05% 640% 540%

Rate of compensation increase . .. ................ 3.50 3.50 3.00

Expected long-term return on plan assets ........... 8.50 8.50 8.50
Non-domestic plans:

Discountrate ........... ... cuiiiieruiin... 510% 4.75% 425%

Rate of compensation increase . . ................. 300 3.00 300

Expected long-term return on plan assets ........... 6.50 6.50 6.50

The discount rate was determined by projecting the plan’s expected future benefit payments as
defined for the projected benefit obligation, discounting those expected payments using a theoretical
zero-coupon spot yield curve derived from a universe of high-quality bonds as of the measurement date,
and solving for the single equivalent discount rate that resulted in the same projected benefit obligation,
Constraints were applied with respect to callability and credit quality. In addition, 3% of the bonds were
deemed outliers due to questionable pricing information and consequently were excluded from
consideration.
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6. Employee Benefit Plans (Continued)
Plan Assets

The following table sets forth the actual asset allocation and target allocations for our U.S. pension
plans:

_May 31.’._ Target Asset

2008 2007 Allocation
Equity securities .. ... ... i e 9% 67% 45-15%
Fixed income Securities . . ... ..o e e enenounn 22 21 25-55%
Other (fund-of funds hedge fund) ................ 19 12 (0-20%

1009 100%

The assets of U.S pension plans are invested in compliance with the Employee Retirement Income
Security Act of 1974 (ERISA). The investment goals are to provide a total return that, over the long term,
optimizes the long-term return on plan assets at an acceptable risk, and to maintain a broad diversification
across asset classes and among investment managers. Direct investments in our securities and the use of
derivatives for the purpose of speculation are not permitted. The assets of the U.S. pension plans are
invested primarily in equity and fixed income mutual funds, individual common stocks and investments in
fund-of funds hedge funds.

The assets of the non-domestic plan are invested in compliance with local laws and reguiations and
are comprised of insurance contracts and equity and fixed income mutual funds.

To develop our expected long-term rate of return assumption on domestic plans, we use long-term
historical return information for our targeted asset mix and current market conditions.

Cash Flow

The following table summarizes our estimated future pension benefits by fiscal year:

Fiscal Year
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 to 2018
Estimated pension benefits . . . ........... $7,127 $5,441 §$5425 $5,546 $5,573 $29,231

Our contribution policy for the domestic plans is to contribute annually, at 2 minimum, an amount
which is deductible for federal income tax purposes and that is sufficient to meet actuarially computed
pension benefits. We anticipate contributing $2,000 to $4,000 during fiscal 2009.

57



AAR CORF. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

6. Employee Benefit Plans (Continued)
Additional Information

The estimated amounts for our plans that will be amortized from accumulated other comprehensive
income into expense over the next fiscal year are as follows:

Amortization of net actuarial 108s. . .. ... ot e $736

Amortization of prior service Cost. . . ... .. e $140

Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions

We provide health and life insurance benefits for certain eligible retirees. The postretirement plans
are unfunded and in fiscal 1995, we completed termination of postretirement health and life insurance
benefits attributable to future services of collective bargaining and other domestic employees. The
unfunded projected benefit obligation for this plan was $1,427 and $1,370 as of May 31, 2008 and 2007,
respectively. We have omitted substantially all of the required disclosures related to this plan because the
plan is not material to our consolidated financial position or results of operations. Effective May 31, 2007,
we adopted the provisions of SFAS No. 158 for this plan resulting in an increase t0 accumulated
comprehensive loss of $463, net of tax.

Defined Contribution Plan

The defined contribution plan is a profit sharing plan which is intended to qualify as a 401(k) plan
under the Internal Revenue Code. Under the plan, employees may contribute up to 75% of their pretax
compensation, subject to applicable regulatory limits. We may make matching contributions up to 5% of
compensation as well as discretionary profit sharing contributions. Company contributions vest on a
pro-rata basis during the first three years of employment. We also provide supplemental profit sharing
benefits for certain executives and key employees to supplement the benefits provided by the defined
contribution plan. Expense charged to results of operations for Company matching contributions,
including profit sharing contributions, was $8,666 in fiscal 2008, $5,501 in fiscal 2007 and $4,216 in fiscal
2006 for these plans.

7. Acquisitions

On January 12, 2007, we acquired substantially all of the assets of Reebaire Aircraft, Inc.
(“Reebaire”), a regional airframe maintenance, repair and overbaul facility located in Hot Springs,
Arkansas. This acquisition increases our regional maintenance, repair and overhaul capacity in North
America. The purchase price was $11,800 and was paid in cash.

On April 2, 2007, we acquired Brown International Corporation (“Brown™), a privately held defense
contractor that provides engineering, design, manufacturing and systems integration services. Brown
operates as part of our Structures and Systems segment. The purchase price was approximately $26,700
and was paid in cash.
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7. Acquisitions (Continued)

Our cost to acquire Reebaire and Brown has been allocated to the assets and liabilities acquired based
on estimated fair values. We have allocated the purchase price as follows:

ACCOUNLS TeCeivable . . . . ot e e e e $15,600
INVEMEOTY . ot v v ittt ettt e a e 600
EQUIPMENt . . ..o e e e 700
Identifiable intangibles .. ...... ... ... ... i i 9,700
GoodWill . e e 20,100
Accounts payable ... .. ... (6,700}
Accrued Habilities . . .. . oo vt (1,500)

On December 3, 2007, we acquired Summa Technology, Inc. (“Summa”), a leading provider of
high-end sub-systems and precision machining, fabrication, welding and engineering services. Summa
operates as part of our Structures and Systems segment. The purchase price was approximately $71,000
and was paid in cash.

On March 5, 2008, we acquired Avborne Heavy Maintenance, Inc. (“Avborne”) and a related entity.
Avborne is an independent provider of aircraft heavy maintenance checks, modifications, installations and
painting services to commercial airlines, international cargo carriers and major aircraft leasing companies.
The purchase price was approximately $40,000 and included a cash payment of $15,000 and the assumption
of a $25,000 industrial revenue bond. Avborne operates as part of our Maintenance, Repair and Overhaul
segment.

We have made a preliminary purchase price allocation for the Summa and Avborne acquisitions and
are in the process of obtaining final valuations for the acquired net assets.

The following unaudited pro forma information is provided for acquisitions assuming the Brown,
Summa and Avborne acquisitions occurred as of the beginning of fiscal year 2006:

For the Year Ended May 31,

2008 2007 2006
Netsales . ..., $1,483,114 $1,210,993  $1,014,542
Operating income . ... ......vuvvneeennn 140,493 100,328 59,784
Netineome. .. ..ot i in i e i e 77,061 58,178 26,622
Earnings per share:
Basic. . .o 5 207 § 1.60 § 0.80
Diluted . . ...t e $ 180 § 139 % 0.72

8. Aircraft Joint Ventures

Our aircraft joint ventures represent investments in limited liability companies that are accounted for
under the equity method of accounting. Our membership interest in each of these limited liability
companies is 50% and the primary business of these companies is the acquisition, ownership, lease and
disposition of certain commercial aircraft. Aircraft are purchased with cash contributions by the members
of the companies and debt financing provided to the limited liability companies on a limited recourse basis.
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8. Aircraft Joint Ventures (Continued)

Twenty-nine aircraft were held in the joint ventures at May 31, 2008. Under the terms of servicing
agreements with certain of the limited liability companies, we provide administrative services and technical
advisory services, including aircraft evaluations, oversight and logistical support of the maintenance
process and records management. We also provide remarketing services with respect to the divestiture of
aircraft by the limited liability companies. During fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006, we were paid $232, $1,115
and $574, respectively, for such services. The income tax benefit or expense related to the operations of the
ventures is recorded by the member companies.

Distributions from joint ventures are classified as operating or investing activities in the consolidated
statements of cash flows based upon an evaluation of the specific facts and circumstances of each
distribution.

Summarized financial information for these limited liability companies is as follows:

For the Year Ended May 31,

2008 2007 2006
Statement of operations information:
Sales .. e e 354,424 § 51,626 § 28,857
Income before provision for income taxes. ... ... 14,237 16,877 3,314
May 31,
2008 2007
Balance sheet information:
ABSEES . L L L et $320,093 $117,185
Debt . . e 233,662 80,425
Members capital . . . ........ ... . e 80,299 31,603

During the second quarter of fiscal 2008, an aircraft held by a joint venture, which was previously
consolidated because we were the primary beneficiary of the joint venture, was sold. The minority interest
related to the gain on the sale was approximately $2,400 and is recorded as an increase to cost of sales in
the consolidated statement of operations.

9. Equipment on Long-Term Lease

In fiscal 2005, we entered into a series of ten-year agreements with Mesa to provide supply chain
services for their fleet of CRJ 700/900, ERJ 145 and CRJ 200 regional jets. As part of the agreements, we
purchased from the customer approximately $58,400 of equipment to support the program. The equipment
is included in equipment on long-term lease on the consolidated balance sheet and is being depreciated on
a straight-line basis over 10 years to a 30% residual value.

10. Commitments and Contingencies

On October 3, 2003, we entered into a sale-leaseback transaction whereby the Company sold and
leased back a facility located in Garden City, New York. The lease is classified as an operating lease in
accordance with SFAS No. 13 “Accounting for Leases”. Net proceeds from the sale of the facility were
$13,991 and the cost and related accumulated depreciation of the facility of $9,472 and $4,595, respectively,
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10. Commitments and Contingencies (Continued)

were removed from the consolidated balance sheet. The gain realized on the sale of $9,114 has been
deferred and is being amortized over the 20-year lease term in accordance with SFAS No. 13. The
unamortized balance of the deferred gain as of May 31, 2008 is $7,071 and is included in other liabilities
and deferred income on the consolidated balance sheet.

In addition to the Garden City lease, we lease other facilities and equipment as well as aviation
equipment under agreements that are classified as operating leases that expire at various dates through
2034. Under the terms of one of the facility lease agreements, we are entitled to receive rent credits as we
increase the space we occupy. During fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006, we received $1,000, $700 and $1,700,
respectively, of such rent credits and in accordance with SFAS No. 13, we are treating the rent credits as
lease incentives, which are being amortized over the term of the lease. Future minimum payments under
all operating leases at May 31, 2008 are as follows:

Future Minimum Payments

Facilities Aviation
Eff and Equipment Equipment
2009 . .. e e e $14,750 $3,840
2000 . . . e e e e e 10,614 1,280
200 .. e e 9,424 —
2 |/ 8,339 —
20 1 7 8,260 —
2014 and thereafter . . . .. ...... ... ... ... o ., 39,931 —

Rental expense during the past three fiscal years was as follows:

For the Year Ended May 31,

2008 2007 2006
Facilities and Equipment . . .................... $18,621 $14,412 $12,514
Aviation Equipment. .. ........ ... ... ... ... 3,095 347 1,538

During the first quarter of fiscal 2008, we completed a sale-leaseback transaction with a financial
institution to finance an aircraft under a capital lease. Proceeds were approximately $12,880. We are
sub-leasing the aircraft under an operating lease with a remaining period of four years. The gross asset
balance and accumulated depreciation of this aircraft as of May 31, 2008 is $15,093 and $641, respectively
and is included in equipment on long-term lease on the consolidated balance sheet. Future minimum
payments and sub-lease rentals under capitalized leases are as follows:

Future
Minimum  Sub-lease
E Payments Rentals
2000 L e e e e e $1,546 $2,700
740 1 e 1,694 2,700
7.1 ) 1 1,756 2,700
2002 e e e e e s 1,904 2,700
2013 o\t e 5,066 563

2014 and thereafter . .. ... ot e e e e _ —_
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10. Commitments and Contingencies {Continued)

We routinely issue letters of credit and performance bonds in the ordinary course of our business.
These instruments are typically issued in conjunction with insurance contracts or other business
requirements. The total of these instruments outstanding at May 31, 2008 was approximately $18,032.

We are involved in various claims and legal actions, including environmental matters, arising in the
ordinary course of business (see Item 3 Legal Proceedings). In the opinion of management, the ultimate
disposition of these matters will not have a material adverse effect on our consolidated financial condition
or results of operations.

11. Discontinued Operations

During the third quarter of fiscal 2007, we decided to exit our non-core industrial turbine business
based in Frankfort, New York. Net assets of the business were approximately $4,600 at May 31, 2008 and
consisted of $2,300 of accounts receivable, $800 of inventory, $1,800 of net property, plant and equipment
and $300 of accounts payable.

Revenues and pre-tax operating loss for fiscal years 2008, 2007 and 2006 for the discontinued
operations are summarized as follows:

For the Year Ended May 31,

2008 2007 2006
Revenues . ............... ... $6,104 $ 7,778 $11,766
Pre-tax operating loss. . .. ....... ... .. .. ... .... $(925) $(1,212) $(1.015)

12. Gain on Sale of Product Line

During the first quarter of fiscal 2007, we sold substantially all assets, subject to certain liabilities, of a
product line within our Structures and Systems segment. Proceeds from the sale were $6,567 and the net
carrying value of the assets sold was $1,209, resulting in a gain on sale of product line of $5,358. The gain
on this transaction has been classified as a component of operating income in accordance with SFAS
No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets.”

13. Impairment Charges

During the first quarter of fiscal 2007, we recorded an impairment charge related to certain engine
parts in the amount of $4,750. These parts were acquired prior to September 11, 2001. The fiscal 2007
impairment charge was triggered by our decision to pursue the liquidation of this inventory. We made the
decision to recognize the impairment due to the impact of persistently high fuel costs and reduced demand
for these parts, as well as to better align human and physical resources with higher potential opportunities
in the rapidly growing Aviation Supply Chain segment. We had previously recorded impairment charges of
$5,360 during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2003 and $75,900 during the second quarter of fiscal 2002 related
to engine and airframe parts and whole engines.
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13. Impairment Charges (Continued)

A summary of the carrying value of impaired inventory and engines, after giving effect to all
impairment charges recorded by us in fiscal 2007, 2003 and 2002 is as follows:

May 31, May 31, May 31, November 30,
2008 2007 2006 2001

Net impaired inventory and engines . ... $22900 $27,400 $36,000 $89,600

Proceeds from sales of impaired inventory and engines for the twelve-month periods ended May 31,
2008, 2007, and 2006 were $3,200, $3,800 and $7,300, respectively.

Other Impairment and Gain on Extinguishment of Debt

During the first quarter of fiscal 2007, we restructured the lease and non-recourse debt on a wholly-
owned wide-body aircraft. This aircraft was originally purchased prior to September 11, 2001. As a result of
the restructuring of the lease and debt, we recorded a $2,927 gain on extinguishment of debt. Further, we
decided to offer this aircraft for sale and recorded a $2,902 impairment charge to reduce the carrying value
of the aircraft to its estimated net realizable value. This aircraft was sold during the third quarter of fiscal
2008.

14. Other Noncurrent Assets
At May 31, 2008 and 2007, other noncurrent assets consisted of the following:

May 31,
2008 2007
Capitalized program developmentcosts . .................. $43,421 $24,343
Cash surrender value of life insurance . . .. ................ 11,299 9,729
Debt 1SSUANCE COSLS .+ v v v v e et it e e e e e et 10,294 5,327
Investment in leveraged lease .. ..... ... ... ... i 8,687 9,096
Notes receivable . . . ... . i e e e 2,236 6,303
Licensesand rights . . . .. ... ... ... .. . i 1,447 1,871
[ 11 7= A AP 18,349 12,985

$95,733  $69,654

Program Development Costs

In June 2005, we announced that our Cargo Systems business was selected to provide cargo handling
systems for the new A400M cargo aircraft. We are a subcontractor to PFW on this Airbus program. Our
portion of the revenue from this program is expected to exceed $300,000 through fiscal 2015, based on
sales projections of the A400M. As of May 31, 2008, we have incurred approximately $43,000 of costs
associated with the engineering and development of the cargo system and have capitalized these costs in
accordance with SOP 81-1 “Accounting for Performance of Construction—Type and Certain Production—
Type Contracts.” Sales and related cost of sales will be recognized on the units of delivery method.
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15, Business Segment Information
Segment Reporting

We report our activities in four business segments: Aviation Supply Chain; Maintenance, Repair and
Overhaul; Structures and Systems; and Aircraft Sales and Leasing.

Sales in the Aviation Supply Chain segment are derived from the sale and lease of a wide variety of
new, overhauled and repaired engine and airframe parts and components to the commercial aviation and
defense markets, as well as the repair and overhaul of a wide range of commercial and military aircraft
parts and components. We also offer customized programs for inventory supply and management and
performance-based logistics. Sales also include the sale and lease of commercial jet engines. Cost of sales
consists principally of the cost of product (primarily aircraft and engine parts), direct labor and overhead
(primarily indirect labor, facility cost and insurance).

Sales in the Maintenance, Repair and Overhaul segment are principally derived from aircraft
maintenance and storage and the repair and overhaul of landing gear. Cost of sales consists principally of
the cost of product (primarily replacement aircraft parts), direct labor and overhead.

Sales in the Structures and Systems segment are derived from the engineering, design and
manufacture of containers, pallets and shelters used to support the U.S. military’s tactical deployment
requirements, complex machined and fabricated parts, components and sub-systems for various aerospace
and defense programs and other applications, in-plane cargo loading and handling systems for commercial
and military applications and composite products for aviation and industrial use. Cost of sales consists
principally of the cost of product, direct labor and overhead.

Sales in the Aircraft Sales and Leasing segment are derived from the sale and lease of commercial
aircraft and technical and advisory services. Cost of sales consists principally of the cost of product
(aircraft), labor and the cost of lease revenue (primarily depreciation and insurance).

The accounting policies for the segments are the same as those described in Note 1. Qur chief
operating decision making officer (Chief Executive Officer) evaluates performance based on the
reportable segments and utilizes gross profit as a primary profitability measure. The expenses and assets
related to corporate activities are not allocated to the segments. Our reportable segments are aligned
principally around differences in products and services.

Gross profit is calculated by subtracting cost of sales from sales. Selected financial information for
each reportable segment is as follows:

For the Year Ended May 31,

2008 2007 2006
Net sales:
Aviation Supply Chain . ........ ... ... .. .. . . .. $ 606,490 $ 543,674 $461,166
Maintenance, Repair and Overhaul .. ..., ... .......... 300,871 211,516 182,258
Structures and Systems . . ... ... . e 389,428 264,083 228,747
Aircraft Salesand Leasing. . .......................... 88,130 41,896 13,347

$1,384,919 $1,061,169 $885,518
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15. Business Segment Information (Continued)
For the Year Ended May 31,

2008 2007 2006
Gross profit:
Aviation Supply Chain . ............ ... .. . ... oL $ 145091 §$ 114,383 § 99,255
Maintenance, Repair and Overhaul . ... ... .............. 43,967 29,915 25,914 -
Structures and Systems . ... ... .. e 54,673 36,021 33,711
Aircraft Salesand Leasing. . . .......... ... .. ... ., 20,341 3,828 4,341

$ 264,072 $ 184,147 $163,221

May 31,
2008 2007 2006
Total assets:
Aviation Supply Chain .. ...... ... ... ... ... oL $ 539,836 $ 449,918 $422519
Maintenance, Repair and Overhaul . . ................... 182,693 124,482 91,332
Structures and Systems . .. ..., ... e 319,915 190,386 113,189
Aircraft Sales and Leasing. .. ... ...... ... ... .. .. . ... 143,781 156,357 141,158
COTPOTAE. . . . ettt it et e e e 175,785 146,490 210,621

$1,362,010 $1,067,633 $978,819

For the Year Ended May 31,

2008 2007 2006
Capital expenditures:
Aviation Supply Chain . ......... ... .. ... . ... ... ... $ 3640 $ 5376 $§ 5,093
Maintenance, Repair and Overhaul . .................... 6,487 4,742 2,556
Structures and Systems . ... ... . i 15,184 18,601 6,806
Aircraft Salesand Leasing. . .. ............ ... ... . ... 4 4 —
COTPOTaLE .« ot ettt e e e 5,019 1,168 1,841

$ 30334 $§ 29891 $ 16,296

For the Year Ended May 31,

2008 2007 2006
Depreciation and amortization:
Aviation Supply Chain . ................ ... .. ... .. ... $ 15440 $ 12449 § 11,849
Maintenance, Repair and Overhaul .. .............. ..... 4,446 2,939 2,834
Structures and Systems . . ... ... .. ... oo 8,231 4,939 4,929
Adrcraft Sales and Leasing. . . ... ....... ... .. ... 8,375 8,725 6,553
COTPOTALE . . . . ottt ettt ettt e e 3,460 3,147 3,057

$ 39952 § 32,199 § 29,222
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15. Business Segment Information (Continued)

The following table reconciles segment gross profit to consolidated income before provision for
income taxes.

For the Year Ended May 31,

2008 2007 2006
Segment gross profit. . .. ... .. ... . e $ 264,072 § 184,147 $163,221
Selling, general and administrative and other .............. (135,502)  (105,091) (99,551)
Earnings from joint ventures . . ....... ... ... .. ... 5,948 10,952 1,502
Gain on sale of product line . ......................... — 5,358 —
Gain (loss) on extinguishment of debt .. ...... ... ........ (205) 2,927 (3.893)
Interest eXpense . .. ... ... v vt (20,578) (16,701)  (18,004)
Interest income andother . . .. ........................ 2,353 5,829 3,236
Income before provision for income taxes .................. $ 116,088 § 87421 $ 46,511

No single non-government customer represents 10% or more of total sales in any of the last three
fiscal years. Sales to the U.S. Department of Defense and its contractors by segment are as follows:

For the Year Ended May 31,

2008 2007 2006
Aviation Supply Chain. . ... ... ... ... ... o $ 99,752 $ 75185 § 77,340
Maintenance, Repair and Overhaul ......................... 33,660 32,184 31,089
Structures and Systems . ... ... .. e 294,249 217911 185,349
Aircraft Sales and Leasing . . ........... ... ... ... .. . . ... 10,840 — —
’ $438,501 §325280 $293,778
Percentage of total sales ........... et e e e 31.7% 30.7% 332%
Geographic Data
May 31,
2008 2007
Long-lived assets:
United States . . . . ... . e e e e $560,181 $410,285
BUrODE L e e e e e 18,113 11,440
1011 285 187

$578,579 $421,912

Sales to unaffiliated customers in foreign countries, the majority of which are located in Europe, the
Middle East, Canada, Mexico, South America and Asia (including sales through foreign sales offices of
domestic subsidiaries}, were approximately $330,132 (23.7% of total sales), $291,892 (27.5% of total sales)
and $237,997 (26.9% of total sales) in fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively.
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16. Selected Quarterly Data (Unaudited)

The unaudited selected quarterly data for fiscal years ended May 31, 2008 and 2007 follows.

Fiscal 2008
Net Income  Diluted Earnings
from Per Share—
Gross Continuing Continuing
M Sales Profit Operations Operations
First . . e e e e $ 305,960 §$ 56,540  $15,255 $0.36
Second . ... e e 310,647 60,350 17,888 0.42
Third ... i e e e s 376,626 70,305 20,285 0.47
Fourth ......... ... . . i, 391,686 76,877 22,317 E
$1384,919 $264,072  §75,745 $1.77
Fiscal 2007
Net Income  Diluted Earnings
from Per Share—
Gross Continuing Continuing
Quarter Sales Profit Operations Operations
) .1 $ 240,242 § 35371 $12,229 $0.30
Second . ... ... e 244,272 45,903 13,982 0.34
Third .. ... . e 270,978 47,275 15,519 0.37
Fourth ...... ... . i it 305,677 55,598 17,717 042
$1,061,169 $184,147  $59,447 $1.42
17. Allowance for Doubtful Accounts
May 31,
2008 2007 2006
Balance, beginning of year . . . ... ... ... i $388 $6466 § 5863
Provision charged to operations . ........... .. ... 3,460 1,500 2,580
Deductions for accounts written off, net of recoveries ............. (1,368) (4,081) (1,977)

Balance, end of year ... ... .. .. i e
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCQUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

Not Applicable.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

As required by Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, we conducted
an evaluation of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures as
of May 31, 2008. This evaluation was carried out under the supervision and with participation of our Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer. There are inherent limitations to the effectiveness of any
system of disclosure controls and procedures. Therefore, effective disclosure controls and procedures can
only provide reasonable assurance of achieving their control objectives. Based upon our evaluation, our
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures
are cffective as of May 31, 2008, ensuring that information required to be disclosed in the reports that are
filed under the Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported in a timely manner.

There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting during the three-month period
ended May 31, 2008 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal.
control over financial reporting.

The Company’s Common Stock is listed on the New York Stock Exchange (“NYSE”) under the ticker
symbol “AIR”. On October 29, 2007, our Chief Executive Officer certified to the NYSE pursuant to
Rule 303A.12(a) that, as of the date of that certification, he was not aware of any violation by the Company
of the NYSE’s Corporate Governance listings standards.

MANAGEMENT REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

Management of AAR COREP. is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control
over financial reporting, as such term is defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) of the Act. The
Company’s internal control over financial reporting is designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements in accordance with U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles. Internal control systems, no matter how well designed, have
inherent limitations. Therefore, even those systems which are determined to be effective provide only
reasonable assurance with respect to financial statement preparation and presentation. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Management assessed the effectiveness of its internal control over financial reporting based on
criteria for effective internal control over financial reporting described in Internal Control—Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

Based on our assessment, management concluded that the Company maintained effective internal
control over financial reporting as of May 31, 2008.

The scope of management’s assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting
includes all of our Company’s consolidated subsidiaries except for Summa and Avborne, businesses
acquired by our Company on December 3, 2007 and March 5, 2008, respectively. Our Company’s
consolidated net sales for the year-ended May 31, 2008 were $1,384,919 of which Summa and Avborne
represented $67,309. Our Company’s consolidated total assets as of May 31, 2008 were $1,362,010, of
which Summa and Avborne represented $126,957.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
TO THE STOCKHOLDERS AND BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF AAR CORP.

We have audited AAR CORP. and subsidiaries’ (the Company)} internal control over financial
reporting as of May 31, 2008, based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). The
Company’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting
and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included in the
accompanying Management Report On Internal Control Over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on
our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in
all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial
reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. Our audit also included performing
such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides
a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal
control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance
of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,
and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorizations
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention
or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have
a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk
that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over
financial reporting as of May 31, 2008, based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated
Framework issued by COSO. :

The scope of management’s assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting
as of May 31, 2008 inciudes all of the Company’s subsidiaries except for Summa Technology, Inc. (Summa)
and Avborne Heavy Maintenance, Inc. (Avborne), businesses acquired by the Company on December 3,
2007 and March 5, 2008, respectively. The Company’s consolidated net sales for the year-ended May 31,
2008 were $1,384,919 of which Summa and Avborne represented $67,309. The Company’s consolidated
total assets as of May 31, 2008 were $1,362,010, of which Summa and Avborne represented $126,957. Our
audit of internal control over financial reporting of the Company also excluded an evaluation of the
internal control over the financial reporting of Summa and Avborne.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States), the consolidated balance sheets of the Company as of May 31, 2008 and 2007, and
the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’ equity and cash flows for each of the years
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in the three-year period ended May 31, 2008, and our report dated July 10, 2008 expressed an unqualified
opinion on those consolidated financial statements,

KPMG LLP

Chicago, lllinois
July 10, 2008

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION
Not Applicable.
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PART II1
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The information required by this item regarding the Directors of the Company and nominees for
election of the Board is incorporated by reference to the information contained under the caption
“Information about the Nominees and Continuing Directors” in our definitive proxy statement for the
2008 Annual Meeting of Stockholders.

The information required by this item regarding the Executive Officers of the Company appears
under the caption “Executive Officers of the Registrant” in Part I, Item 4 above.

The information required by this item regarding the compliance with Section 16(a) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 is incorporated by reference to the information contained under the caption
“Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance” in our definitive proxy statement for the
2008 Annual Meeting of Stockholders.

The information required by this item regarding the identification of the Audit Committee as a
separately-designated standing committee of the Board and the status of one or more members of the
Audit Committee being an “audit committee financial expert” is incorporated by reference to the
information contained under the caption “Corporate Governance—Board Committees” in our definitive
proxy statement for the 2008 Annual Meeting of Stockholders.

The information required by this item regarding our Code of Business Ethics and Conduct applicable
to our directors, officers and employees is incorporated by reference to the information contained under
the caption “Corporate Governance—Code of Business Conduct and Ethics” in our definitive proxy
statement for the 2008 Annual Meeting of Stockholders.

There have been no material changes to the procedures by which stockholders may recommend
nominees to the Company’s board of directors. For a description of those procedures, see the caption
“Corporate Governance—Board Committees—Nominating and Governance Committee” in our definitive
proxy statement for the 2008 Annual Meeting of Stockholders.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to the information contained
under the captions “Executive Compensation—Compensation Committee’s Report on Executive
Compensation,”  “Executive = Compensation—Summary ~ Compensation  Table,”  “Executive
Compensation—Grants of Plan-Based Awards Table,” “Executive Compensation—Outstanding Equity
Awards at Fiscal Year End Table,” “Executive Compensation—Option Exercises and Stock Vested Table,”
“Executive Compensation—Pension Benefits Table,” “Executive Compensation—Non-Qualified Deferred
Compensation Table,” “Executive Compensation—Potential Payments Upon Termination of Employment
or Change in Control of the Company,” “Corporate Governance—Director Compensation,” and
“Corporate Governance—Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation™ in our
definitive proxy statement for the 2008 Annual Meeting of Stockholders.
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ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT
AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information required by this item regarding security ownership of certain beneficial owners and
management is incorporated by reference to the information contained under the caption “Security
Ownership of Management and Others” in our definitive proxy statement for the 2008 Annual Meeting of
Stockholders.

The following table provides information as of May 31, 2008 with respect to the Company’s
compensation plans under which equity securities of the Company are authorized for issuince (shares in
thousands):

Equity Compensation Plan Information

Number of securities
remaining available

Number of securities for future issuance
to be issued Weighted-average under equity

upon exercise of exercise price of compensation plans

outstanding options,  outstanding options, {excluding securities

warrants and rights warrants and rights  reflected in column (a)}
(a) (b) (c)

Equity compensation plans approved by
security holders . . . . ............... 1,425 - $21.53 3,696

Equity compensation plans not approved
by security holders . ...............

Total .. ... 1,425 $21.53

»
3
&

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR
INDEPENDENCE

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to the information contained
under the captions “Corporate Governance—Director Independence” and “Corporate Governance—
Related Person Transaction Policy” in our definitive proxy statement for the 2008 Annual Meeting of
Stockholders.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to the information contained
under the caption “Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm Fees and Services” in our definitive
proxy statement for the 2008 Annual Meeting of Stockholders.
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PART IV
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
{a)(1) and (2) Financial Statements and Financial Statement Disclosures

* The following financial statements are filed as a part of this report under “ltem 8—Financial
Statements and Suppiementary Data”.

Page
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm .. .............. ... .ot 28
Financial Statements—AAR CORP. and Subsidiaries:
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the three years ended May 31,2008 ............. 29
Consotidated Balance Sheets as of May 31, 2008 and 2007 .. ... ... ... ... ... ... hns 30-31
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity for the three years ended May 31, 2008 ... ... 32
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the three years ended May 31,2008 ............. 33
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements . ............... ... 0 it 34-67
Selected quarterly data (unaudited) for the years ended May 31, 2008 and 2007 (Note 16 of
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements) .. ... ... ..o, 67

(a)(3) Exhibits

The Exhibits filed as part of this report are set forth in the Exhibit Index contained elsewhere herein.
Management contracts and compensatory arrangements have been marked with an asterisk (*) on the
Exhibit Index.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the
Registrant has duly caused this annual report on Form 10-K to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned,
thereunto duly authorized.

AAR CORPF.
(Registrant)
Date: July 10, 2008 BY: /s/ DAVID P. STORCH

David P. Storch
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this annual report on Form 10-K
has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the
dates indicated.

Signature Title Date
/s/ DAVID P. STORCH Chairman and Chief Executive Officer;
David P. Storch Director (Principal Executive Officer)
/s/ TIMOTHY J. ROMENESKO President and Chief Operating Officer;
Timothy J. Romenesko Director
/s/ RICHARD J. POULTON Vice President, Chief Financial Olfficer
; and Treasurer
Richard J. Poulton (Principal Financial Officer)
/s/ MICHAEL J. SHARP Vice President and Controller
Michael J. Sharp {Principal Accounting Officer)
/s/ NORMAN R. BOBINS .
- Director
Norman R. Bobins
/s MICHAEL R. BOYCE .
- Director
Michael R. Boyce
fs{ JAMES G. BROCKSMITH, JR. ] 1
- Director July 10, 2008
James G. Brocksmith, Jr.
/s/ GERALD F. FITZGERALD, JR. .
- Director
Gerald E Fitzgerald, Jr.
/s/ RONALD R. FOGLEMAN .
Director
Ronald R. Fogleman
/s{ JAMES E. GOODWIN )
) Director
James E. Goodwin
/s/ PATRICK J. KELLY )
- Director
Patrick I. Kelly
/s/ MARC J. WALFISH )
- Director
Marc J. Walfish
{s/ RONALD B. WOODARD .
- Director
Ronald B. Woodard |
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Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATION

I, David P. Storch, certify that:

1.
2.

I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of AAR CORP. (the “Registrant™);

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or
omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances
under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by
this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this
report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and
cash flows of the Registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The Registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(¢) and 15d-15(e))
and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and
15d-15(f)} for the Registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and
procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information
relating to the Registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being
prepared,

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over
financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

¢} Evaluated the effectiveness of the Registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and
presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls
and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation;
and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the Registrant’s internal control over financial
reporting that occurred during the Registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the Registrant’s
fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the Registrant’s internal control over financial
reporting; and

The Registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent
evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the Registrant’s auditors and the audit
committee of the Registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent
tunctions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal
control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the
Registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have
a significant role in the Registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

DATE: July 10, 2008

/s/ DAVID P. STORCH

David P. Storch
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATION

I, Richard J. Poulton, certify that:

L.
2,

I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of AAR COREP. (the “Registrant™);

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or
omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances
under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by
this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this
report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and
cash flows of the Registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The Registrant’s other certifying officer and 1 are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(¢) and 15d-15(e))
and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and
15d-15(f)) for the Registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and
procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information
relating to the Registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being
prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over
financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the Registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and
presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls
and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation;
and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the Registrant’s internal control over financial
reporting that occurred during the Registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the Registrant’s
fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the Registrant’s internal control over financial
reporting; and

The Registrant’s other certifying officer and 1 have disclosed, based on our most recent
evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the Registrant’s auditors and the audit
committee of the Registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal
control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the
Registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have
a significant role in the Registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

DATE: July 10, 2008

/s/ RICHARD J. POULTON

Richard J. Poulton
Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and
Treasurer




Exhibit 32,1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the AAR CORP. (the “Company”) Annual Report on Form 10-K for the period
ending May 31, 2008 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the
“Report”), I, David P. Storch, Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certify pursuant to 18 U.S.C.
Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that, to the best of my
knowledge:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and

2. The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the
financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

Date: July 10, 2008 /s/ DAVID P, STORCH

David P. Storch
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1330,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the AAR CORP. (the “Company”) Annual Report on Form 10-K for the period
ending May 31, 2008 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the
“Report”), I, Richard J. Poulton, Chief Financial Officer of the Company, certify pursuant to 18 U.S.C.
Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that, to the best of my
knowledge:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and

2. The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the
financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

Date: July 10, 2008 /s/ RICHARD J. POULTON

Richard J. Poulton
Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and
Treasurer




STOCKHOLDER INFORMATION

Corporate Headquarters
AAR CORP.

1100 North Wood Dale Road
Wood Dale, lllinois 60191
Telephane: 630-227-2000
Facsimile: 630-227-2019
WWW.aarcorp.com

Transfer Agent and Registrar
Computershare Trust Company, N.A.
Providence, Rhode Island

Annual Meeting of Stockholders

The annual meeting of stockholders will be held

at 9:00 a.m. {CDST) on Wednesday, October 8, 2008,
at AAR Corporate Headquarters, 1100 North Wood
Dale Road, Wood Dale, lllinois 60121,

The Investor Service Program

AAR CORP. provides its stockholders the opportunity

to purchase additional shares of common stock of

the Company by automatic reinvestment of dividends
and optional additional investments. Stockholders may
obtain information regarding this plan by contacting the
Secratary, AAR CORP,, 1100 North Wood Dale Road,
Wood Dale, lllinois 60191,

Special Counsel
Schiff Hardin LLP
Chicago, lllincis

Ticker Symbol
AAR stock is traded on the New York and
Chicago Stock Exchanges. Ticker symbol AIR.
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